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ietter to Shareholders:

Clearly the past year has been a challenging time for the super-
market industry as the continued economic slowdown and
uncertainty caused by the threat of terrorism, as well as compet-
itive pressures, contributed to sluggish sales. While Pathmark was
not immune to these challenges, we produced solid results in
2002 as the result of our keen focus on cost control, productivity
improvements and targeted capital investments. At the same
time, we improved our market share during the year and took a
number of important steps to position us for the longer term.

Sales for fiscal 2002 were $3.94 billion, down 0.6% from the prior
year. Net earnings for fiscal 2002 were $13.3 million or $0.44 per
diluted share compared to a net loss of $242.0 million or $8.07
per diluted share in fiscal 2001, Excluding the amortization of
goodwill in 2001, net earnings were $23.5 million or $0.77 per
diluted share. From a balance sheet perspective, long-term debt
was $439.4, down slightly from $440.6 a year age, while long-
term lease obligations were $182.9 million, up from $172.8 million
in 2001. Stockholders’ equity rose to $356.8 million as of
February [, 2003, from $344.4 million at February 2, 2002.

In 2002, we continued to grow and improve operations. We
opened seven new stores, including three replacement units,
closed one store and renovated eleven stores. We also installed
a state-of-the-art front-end checkout system in all stores, and
self-checkouts in about half of our 144 locations, and we are
benefiting from improved customer service and front-end pro-
ductivity from these investments.

Initiatives to improve customer service and maintain our industry-
leading store sanitation and cleanliness standards continue to be
successful. Customer service ratings, as objectively determined by
a third-party research company, improved in 2002 to our highest
levels in the last two years. Pictured on page two of this Annual
Report is our Pathmark Howell store team, which was Pathmark’s
#| rated store for customer service last year. Congratulations
and well done, Howvell!

In terms of marketing strategy, in February we tock the pioneering
step of moving the beginning of our sales week from Sunday—the
traditional first day of the sales week in our industry—to Friday.
This allows us to better align our promotional activities with the
peak Friday, Saturday and Sunday shopping period.

Finally, Pathmark’s leadership also changed during the year.
In October, Jim Donald, our former CEO, resigned to accept the
position of President of North American operations at Starbucks
Corp. We want to thank Jim for his years of service to Pathmark
and wish him well. At the same time, we're very excited about
leading Pathmark forward. Both of us have been with Pathmark
for over 30 years, starting at entry-level positions and working
our ways up through the organization. This experience at all levels
of Pathmark has prepared us for the challenges ahead. We look
forward to working with the management team and our 26,000
associates as we lead Pathmark into the future.

Going forward, there certainly will be challenges. The economy
and the world situation stifl suggest an uncertain environment for
2003, and competition from traditional supermarket competitors
and other retail formats remains strong. While we've already
taken actions that will enable us to benefit when the economy
improves, in this environment we recognize the importance of
maintaining a focus on cost control measures. We also remain
committed to enhancing our operations, further strengthening
our organization and pursuing the many growth opportunities
that still exist in our trade areas. We are confident that Pathmark
is strong and our future is bright.

We appreciate your support and reaffirm our pledge to do all we
can to continue to improve the strength and value of our company.

EILEEN SCOTT FRANK VITRANO
Chief Executive Officer President & CFO

April 28, 2003




Financial Highlights

(in millions, except per share data)

Fiscat 2002

Fiscal 2001

Key Operating Data:

Operating €ANINGS (0SS v e s e s esssessiressssaeseasmresses
INEEIEST EXPENSE, NET oooiiiererererer st e ss s sessse s s e
NET CANINGS (OS] rvrecrnrmrereresecssssmensimessmsessearsessssssssssmses messesssssesssoss st ot sesssesssnesss
Outstanding ShareS—dilULE ...

Net earnings (10ss) per share—diluted. ...

$3,937.7

$ 920

$ 651

$ 133@
304

$ 044

$39633

$ (1549)

$ 653

$ (2420))
30,0

$ (807)

February [, 2003

February 2, 2002

Financial Position:
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENTS. ... s e
Total debt and Capital [BASES ...t s

STOCKNOIAEIS” EQUILY w.uvovivcriirre e s s s

$ 113
$ 6529
$ 3568

$ 246
$ 6396

$ 3444

(a) Includes a charge of $0.6 million, net of tax, for the cumulative effect of an accounting change.
(b) Includes the amortization of goodwill of $265.5 million and an extraordinary item of $3.3 million, net of tax.




Our Stores:
Pathmark operated 44 supermarkets at year-end, representing over 7.5 million square feet of space. Approximately

82% of our stores were new or renovated within the prior five years,

98 99 00 01 02 98 99 00 01 02 ‘%8 99 00 0! 02
NUMBER OF SUPERMARKETS TOTAL SQUARE FEET PERCENT OF STORES NEW OR
(in millions) RENOVATED WITHIN THE PRIOR FIVE YEARS

Our Associates:
Pathmark employs approximately 26,000 associates, each of whom is vital to our success. Pictured here is the Howell

Pathmark team, which was rated #1| for customer service in 2002.
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Forward-Looking Information

. This report and the documents incorporated by reference into this report contain both historical and
“forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21E of the
Exchange Act. These statements appear in a number of places in this report and include statements regarding
our intent, belief and current expectations with respect to, among other things, capital expenditures and
technology initiatives, the ability to borrow funds under our credit facilities, the ability to successfully
implement our operating strategies, including trends affecting our businéss, financial condition and results of
operations. The words “may”, “will”, “believe”, “expect”, “anticipate”, “intend”, “project” and other similar
expressions generally identify forward-looking statements. While these forward-looking statements and the
related assumptions are made in good faith and reflect our current judgment regarding the direction of our
business, actual results will almost always vary, sometimes materially, from any estimates, predictions,
projections, assumptions or other future performance suggested herein. These statements are based upon a
number of assumptions and estimates which are inherently subject to significant uncertainties and
contingencies, many of which are beyond our control and reflect future business decisions which are subject to
change. Some of these assumptions inevitably will not materialize, and unanticipated events will occur which
will affect our results. Some important factors (but not necessarily all factors) that could negatively affect our
revenues, growth strategies, future profitability and operating results, or that otherwise could cause actual

results to differ materially from those expressed in or implied by any forward-locking statement, include the
following:

changes in business and economic conditions and cther.adverse conditions in our markets;
unanticipated environmental damages; '
increased competition; :
" increased labor costs and/or labor disruptions;
reliance on third-party suppliers; ‘
_our ability to successfully 1mplement our renovanon and expansicn strategxes and
natural disasters.

® © ® @ o @

For a-discussion of these factors, see Item 1 — Business — Factors Affecting Cur Business and Prospects.




Item &. Business*®

General

- Pathmark Stores, Inc. was incorporated in Delaware in 1987 and is the successor by merger to a business
established in 1966. In October 1987, our predecessor companies were acquired in a leveraged buyout
pursuant to which substantial indebtedness was incurred. While our core supermarkets operations remained
sound following this leveraged buyout, the additional indebtedness and associated interest expense ultimately
led us and our then parent companies to file a prepackaged plan of reorganization in-the U.S. Bankruptcy
Court in Delaware on July 12, 2000. On September 7, 2000, the Court entered an order confirming our plan of -
reorganization, which became effective on September 19, 2000, at ‘which time we formally exited Chapter 11.
As part of the plan of reorganization, approximately $1 billion of our subordinated debt was cancelled, with
the holders receiving 100% of our common stock. Our principal executive office is located at 200 Milik
Street, Carteret, NJ 07008 (telephone: (732) 499-3000). Unless the context indicates otherwise, the terms

“Company”, “Pathmark”, “we” and “our” as used in this report, mean Pathmark Stores, Inc. and its
consolidated subsidiaries.’ ' '

We are a leading supermarket chain in the Northeast, operating 144 stores in the densely populated New
York-New Jersey and Philadelphia metropolitan areas. ‘We pioneered the development of the large
supermarket/drugstore format in the Northeast, opening our first store of this kind in 1977. Operating in the
New York-New Jersey and Philadelphia metropolitan areas for over 35 years, we have successfully developed
a leading supermarket franchise with strong brand name recognition and customer loyalty. We believe we are
- the largest supermarket chain operating under a single banner in our market area in terms of sales. We focus
our operations on this market area, where we believe we can maintain and build upon our strong market presence
and achieve additional operating economies. All of our stores are located within 100 miles of our corporate
office in Carteret, New Jersey and of our company-operated and outsourced distribution facilities. The proximity
of these distribution facilities to our stores enables us to maintain better in-stock conditions and lower distribution
costs. Our market area includes some of the most densely populated regions of the United States, representing
approximately 10% of the U.S. population and encompassing two of the five largest U.S. metropolitan areas
by population, namely New York and Philadelphia. We believe that the high population density in our

markets coupled with the geographxc concentration of our stores provide substantial opportunmes for
economies of scale. ‘ :

~ Stores

Hzghly Productive, Modern-F ormat Store Base. Our stores are among the most productive in the industry.
During fiscal 2002, we generated sales per store and sales per selling square foot of $28.2 million and $724,
respectively, compared to industry averages of approximately $19.2 million and $563, respectively. Our stores
average approximately 52,300 square feet in size and are approximately 19% larger than the average U.S.
supermarket. We design our stores to provide customers with “one-stop” shopping with a wide assortment of
foods and general merchandise, as well as a host of additional conveniences, including 131 in-store full-
service pharmacies and a wide array of financial services offered by 88 in-store banks. We are a leading filler
of prescriptions among our supermarket competitors in the New York-New Jersey and Philadelphia
metropolitan areas and, through our agreements with Fleet Bank and New York Community Bank, we believe
we are the leading provider of in-store banking services in our market area.

Below is a summary of the range of our store sizes as of February 1, 2003: ,
‘ ‘ ' Number

Total Square Feet : : of Stores
Greater than 60,000 ................. e eteerrsieteaet e teeta it e s aasdebaeterenaeseenaeee ' 17
50,001 = 60,000........cciieirici e eerreareeinieenenrereraaans - 79
40,000 - 50,000..........errrerrrrrens e e 36
Less than 40,000 ..o cnesesisiesesesessseesseens R 12
Total........ e et ettt S N U RS 144 -

* Unless otherwise indicated, all information in Item 1is given as of February 1, 2003.
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115 of our stores are in the greater New York-New Jersey metropolitan area and 29 of our stores are in the
greater Philadelphia metropolitan area. Our stores are generally well situated in high traffic urban and
suburban locations where we have established a loyal customer base and where we believe we are well
positioned against new competitive entrants. Given the prime locations of our stores coupled with a format
that offers our customers a convenient, “one-stop” shopping experience, our stores are among the most
productive in our industry.

Prime Real Estate Locations. Our many years of operation in our market area have allowed us to establish
a store presence in highly desirable urban and suburban locations. Our well situated stores give us a strong
position against new competitive entrants as our store portfolic would be difficult to replicate.

Provide Superior Customer Service and Store-Level Execution. We believe we differentiate ourselves by,
among other things, our focus on customer service. To ensure the implementation of our high customer
service standards, we rely on a store evaluation program whereby “mystery shoppers” visit our stores and rate
each store on a variety of customer service attributes. One of our top priorities is to continue our strong
execution in the area of food safety, which, through our surveys, we have found to be a top criterion by which
customers choose a supermarket. We intend to continue to develop and improve store-level execution through
programs that emphasize proactive, interpersonal communication between store associates and customers.

Reduce Operating Expenses. We consistently evaluate our business in an effort to reduce operating
expenses without affecting our overall objective of providing a high leve! of customer service. Currently, we
have a number of initiatives in place to accomplish this goal. For example, our labor initiative is intended to
increase associate productivity through the increased use of technology, such as more efficient point-of-sale
equipment. We also have a program called “Best Ball,” which is designed to identify the best operating
practices in use by certain stores and implement these best practices throughout our chain. These operating
practices include maximizing efﬁment use of supplies and minimizing workers' compensation and customer
accident claims. :

‘Merchandising

Strong and Differentiated Merchandising. We believe that cur merchandising and marketing programs
allow us to differentiate our preduct and service offering to our customers. We also believe that our large
stores and the experience of our category managers and store operators allow us to respond to the varying
product demands of our customers with effective merchandising, which is important given the diverse ethnic
makeup of the communities in which we operate. In addition, we offer over 3,500 private label products under
the “Pathmark” name. Given our leading position in our market area, our high customer count and our
established marketing expertise, we are also able to offer vendors significant opportunities to market their
products effectively in a desirable market area. As a result, we believe we are well-positioned to realize
purchasing and cooperative marketing benefits from vendors.

Our merchandising strategy is designed to offer a “one-stop” shopping experience that leverages our large

store format and strong category management skills to provide a differentiated product and service offering for

" our customers, while allowing us to merchandise our higher margin products more effectively. In addition, we

believe our focus on perishables, ethnic merchandising and private label has mcrea.sed customer loyalty, while
providing higher margins and profitability.

Perishables. We believe that the quality of perishable items, particularly produce, is an important factor for
consumers when choosing where to shop. Beginning in fiscal 2001, we raised our focus on produce to the
“next level.” Produce managers, general and assistant store managers and even members of senior
management undergo produce training designed to educate them on all aspects of running a high quality and
profitable produce department. We introduced into our advertisements “Produce Pete,” a local television
personality whe appears on a television show on weekend mornings devoted to tips on shopping for fresh
fruits and vegetables. We also continue to focus on our fresh seafood department which has shown steady
growth. In addition, we have redesigned our bakery departments and modified its offerings to improve
profitability by reducing shrink, lowering operating costs and improving the departmental product mix.




Ethnic Merchandising. Being located in the New York-New Jersey and Philadelphia metropolitan areas,
we serve a highly diverse customer base, very often within the neighborhood of a given store. We effectively
vary our product offerings across our store base in order to satisfy the various food preferences of our diverse
customer base. We believe that our large stores and the experience of our category managers and store
operators allow us to respond to the varying product demands of our customers with effective merchandising,
which is especially important given the diversity of the communities in which we operate.

Private Label. We have a large variety of private label products under the “Pathmark” name. Over 3,500
Pathmark private label products are currently available, which we believe provide substantial value to our

customers and increases overall customer loyalty. New, updated packaging for our entire line of private label -
products has helped to strengthen our brand positioning.

Gross Profit. We intend to continue to focus on improving our profitability by capitalizing on our large
store format, which affords us the flexibility to more effectively merchandise a broader array of products and
services, including higher margin products. An integral part of our merchandising and marketing effort is to
promote increased customer traffic for our stores through our various convenience service departments, such
as in-store pharmacies and banks. Furthermore, we plan to leverage the Pathmark Advantage Card loyalty
program, which facilitates more effective category management and offers us the opportunity to more
efficiently target sales promotions while strengthening our customer base. We also intend to increase our
focus on, and merchandising of, our private label products as they generally provide higher margins than

comparable branded products. Gross profit improvement initiatives will also include a focus on mventory
control, efficient ordering and shrink reduction.

Store Renovation and Expansion.

We continue to renovate our stores and expand our store base. We believe that keeping stores fresh and up-
to-date Is critically important, and our goal is to renovate each store approximately once every five years. The
store renovation program for. fiscal 2002 included 11 store renovations. At the end of fiscal 2002,
approximately 82%-of our stores were either new-or have been renovated over the last five years. In addition to
centinually renovating our stores, we intend to further strengthen our position in our market area by selectively
expanding our store base. During fiscal 2003, we expect to open three new stores, one of which will be a’
replacement store, close one store and compilete 16 store renovations. By opening stores in our existing trade
area, we believe we can increase our strong market presence and achieve additional operating economies.

We continuously evaluate our stores for necessary renovations. A renovation involves capital expenditures.
in excess of $350,000 and typically increases customer traffic and sales, responds tc customer demand,
competes more effectively against new competitors or updates a particular format to our current prototype. In
certain circumstances, we may decide to replace a store instead of conducting a major renovation due to
popula‘aon shifts, avaﬂabmty of a ' more attractive site or cost considerations.

We spent $121.1 million on cap1tal expenditures, including property acquired under capital leases and

technology investments, in fiscal 2002. We expect to spend approximately $95 million on capital expenditures
in fiscal 2003. '

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, our store development and renovation activities:

Fiscal Year _

: : ‘ 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Stores in operation at beginning of period.............. 141 138 135 132 135
Opened or acquired during period...........c.ceveennen. 7 5 4 3 -
Closed dUTINgG PETIO ..v.vrvreseerrerssrrerreeisrercerseren @O (L — 3
Stores in operatioh at end of period ........cco..oo...... 144 141 138 135 132
Stores renovated during period ................ e LI 34 19 29 14




Advertising and Promotiorn

As part of our marketing strategy, we emphasize value through competitive pricing and weekly sales and
promotions, supported by extensive advertising. Our advertising expenditures are concentrated on print
advertising, including advertisements and circulars in local and area newspapers, with an accent on the ethnic
media and ad flyers distributed in stores and on radio. Effective February 7, 2003, we shifted our weekly ad
from a Sunday start (Saturday end) to begin on Friday (Thursday end). This move addresses the continuing
trend of an increasing number of consumers fulfilling their shopping needs between Friday and Sunday. We
believe this will result in better in-stock conditions and more efficient use of our labor resources. We are the

only major supermarket in our market area beginning its weekly ad on ]Fnday, as other supermarkets break
their ad on either Saturday or Sunday.

We plan to continue to increase our focus on the Pathmark Advantage Card program to enhance our
understanding of customer purchasing patterns and develop targeted sales promotions to ocur customer base. In

addition, we have a website (www, pathmark com) which offers promotional dlscounts and assorted on-line
services.

Given our leading position in our trade area, our large customer count and our established marketing
expertise, we are able to offer vendors significant opportunities to feature their products effectively in a

desirable market area. As a result, we believe- we are well-positioned to realize purchasing and cooperative
marketing benefits from our vendors.

Purchasing and Distribution

We have outsourced a major portion of our dlstnbutlon and trucking functions. This approach allows us to
focus on our customers and stores. We have a long-term agreement expiring in February 2013 with C&S
Wholesale Grocers, Inc. (“C&S”), the nation's third largest grocery wholesale company in terms of sales, to
supply us with substantially all of our products other than general merchandise, pharmacy, health and beauty
care and tobacco products. This agreement may be terminated for cause or certain events of bankruptcy by -

either party. Under our arrangement with C&S, we negotiate prices, discounts and promotions dlrectly with
vendors.

AmeriSource-Bergen Corp., one of the nation's leading pharmaceutical wholesalers, currently supplies all
of our pharmacy products. In addition, we have an agreement with a third-party trucking company to transport
our products from our outsourced and internally operated warehouse and distribution facilities to our stores.
While we have an excellent relationship with our current distribution partners, should we need to find

alternative distribution partners for any reason, we believe that alternative sources of supply would be
available to us at market terms.

Our general merchandise and health and beauty care products are internally supplied from our 290,000
~ square foot leased distribution center in Edison, New Jersey. We believe that our outsourced and internally
provided warehouse and distribution facilities contain sufficient capacity for the continued expansion of our
store base for the foreseeable future. All of our stores are within 100 miles of these distribution facilities.

' Management Information Systems

We implemented a new financial system in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001 which enhanced our
operational reporting and analytical tools. Similarly, our Wide Area Network was upgraded to take advantage
of more reliable and faster frame relay technology which improved communications with stores. Beginning in
early 2002, we installed the latest point-of-sale technology from International Business Machines Corporation
(“IBM™) in all our stores, which improved cashier productivity and customer service.

In addition, after testing “self-checkout” equipment ‘and realizing strong customer acceptance and repeat
usage, we installed this feature in 73 stores, with the intent of both improving our customers’ experience and
lowering store-level operating costs. We are also in the process of implementing a new time and attendance
system, with a view to allowing us to more effectively track store-level labor costs. In fiscal 2003, we plan to




commence a multi-year project to upgrade our current merchandising system, which should assist us mn
maximizing SKU level profitability and improve in-store merchandising.

. Many of our various systems initiatives were incorporated as part of a five-year extension of our existing
IBM outsourcing agreement in April 2001. Pursuant to this agreement, IBM operates our data center
operations and mainframe processing and information system functions and is providing business applications
and systems designed to enhance our efficiency and customer service. The charges under this agreement are

based upon the services requested at predetermined rates. We believe that this arrangement allows us to focus
our management resources on our customers and stores.

Competitien

The supermarket business is highly competitive. Our earnings are primarily dependent on the maintenance
of relatively high sales volume per supermarket, efficient product acquisition and distribution and cost-
effective store operations. Principal competitive factors include price, store location, advertising and
promotion, product mix, quality and service. We compete against national, regional and local supermarkets,
club stores, drug stores, convenience stores, discount merchandisers and other local retailers in our market

area. Our principal supermarket competitors include Acme, A&P (trading under several banners), Foodtown,
King Xullen, ShopRite and Stop & Shop.

Trade Names, Service Marks and Trademarks

We have registered a variety of trade names, service marks and trademarks with the U.S. Patent and
Trademark Office, including “Pathmark.” We consider our Pathmark service marks to be of material -
importance to our business and actively defend and enforce such service marks.

Regulation

Qur business requires us to hold various licenses and to register certain of our facilities with state and
federal health, drug and alcoholic beverage regulatory agencies. By virtue of these licenses and registration
requirements, we are obligated to observe certain rules and regulations, and a violation of such rules and
regulations could result in a suspension or revocation of our licenses or registrations. In addition, most of our

licenses require periodic renewals. We have expenenced no material difficulties with respect to obtaining or
retaining our licenses and registrations.

Pathmark in the Community

‘We are recognized as a long-standing, important member of the communities Wthh we serve. This
recognition is based upon our associates' involvement in important community outreach efforts, as well as our
support, both financial and in kind, of numerous nonprofit charitable organizations. These include both large
(e.g., American Cancer Society, March of Dimes and Children’s Miracle Network) and small (e.g., local little

leagues, scouts and religious institutions) charities, as well as Community Food Banks throughout our trade
area. '

Associates

As of February 1, 2003, we employed approximately 26,000 people, of whom approximately 18,000 were
employed on a part-time basis. Appreximately 90% of our associates are covered by 15 collective bargaining
agreements (typically having four-year terms) negotiated with 12 different local unions. During fiscal 2003,
three contracts, covering approximately 3,200 associates, will expire. We do not anticipate any difficulty in
renegotiating these contracts. We believe that our relationship with our associates is generally satisfactory.




Cur senior management team has significant experience, with our top four executives having worked in the
industry for an average of 35 years. The current management team is led by Eileen Scott, who joined us in
1969 and became CEO in October 2002. Management has successfully implemented numerous operational
initiatives which have served to increase our overall.competitiveness and market share. Our management team
and associates also own and hold options to purchase cur common stock, with stock-based incentives reaching
down to the assistant store manager level. In addition, “a significant pomon of management's total
compensatlon 1s incentive based

Available Information

Our intemet address is www.pathmark.com. We make available on cur website, free of charge, press
releases, our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and
amendments to those reports filed or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) as
soon as reasonable practicable after we electronically file or furnish it with the SEC, beginning February 1,
2003. We do not intend for information found on our website to be part of these documents.

Factors Affecting Our Busimess and Pmspecﬁs

Our industry is intensely competitive and the competition we encounter may have a negative impact on the

prices we may charge for our products, our revenues and profitability. The supermarket business is highly

- competitive and is characterized by high inventory tumover and narrow profit margins. Our results of

operations are therefore, sensitive to, and may be materially adversely impacted by, among other things,

- competitive pricing, promotional pressures and additional store openings. We compete with national and

regional supermarkets, club stores, drug stores, convenience stores, discount merchandisers and other local

retailers in the market areas we serve. Competition with these outiets is based on price, store location,

advertising and promotion, product mix, quality and service. Some of these competitors may have greater

financial resources, lower merchandise acquisition cost and lower operatmg expenses than we do, and we may
be unable to compete successfully in the future.

We are concentrated in the New York-New Jersey and ]Phila.delphia metropolitan areas. As a result, we are
vulnerable tc economic downturns in that region, in addition to those that may affect the country as a whole, as
well as natural and other catastrophic events that may impact that region. These events may adversely affect our
sales which may lead to lower earnings, or even losses, and may also adversely affect our future growth and
expansion. For example, the economic recession beginning in fiscal 2001, combined with the terrorist events of
September 11, 2001, have adversely affected our market area and the regional economy. Further, since we are
concentrated in densely populated metropolitan areas, opportunities for future store expansion may be limited,
which may adversely affect our business and results of operations.

Our renovation and expansion plans may not be successful, which may adversely affect our business and
financial condition. A key to our business strategy has been, and will continue to be, the renovation and
expansion of total selling square footage. Although we expect cash flows generated from operations,
supplemented by the unused borrowing capacity under our bank credit facility and the availability of capital lease
financing, will be sufficient to fund our capital renovation and expansion programs, sufficient funds may not be.
available. In addition, the greater financial resources of some of our competitors for real estate sites could
adversely affect our ability to open new stores. The inability to reriovate our existing stores, add new stores or

increase the selling area of existing stores could adversely affect our busmess our results of operations and our
ability to compete successfully. '

We rely on C&S for supply of a majority of our products. Pursuant to the terms of a long-term supply
agreement, we rely on C&S for supply of substantially all of the products we sell other than direct store
deliveries, general merchandise, pharmacy, health and beauty care and tobacco products. During fiscal 2002, the
products supplied from C&S accounted for approximately 60% of all of our supermarket inventory purchases.
Although we have not experienced difficulty in the supply of these products to date, supply interruptions by C&S
may occur in the future. Any significant interruption in this supply stream, either as a result of disruptions at

C&S or if the C&S agreement were termmated for any reason, could have a material adverse effect on our
business and results of operations.




We are affected by increasing labor and benefit costs and a competitive labor market and are subject to the -
risk of unionized labor disruptions. Our continued success depends on our ability to attract and retain qualified
personnel. We compete with other businesses in our markets with respect to attracting and retaining qualified
employees. - A shortage of qualified employees may require us to enhance our wage and benefits package in
order to compete effectively in the hiring and retention of qualified employees. Our labor and benefit costs may
continue to increase, and such increases may not be recovered. If we fail to attract and retain qualified
employees, to control our labor and benefit costs or to recover increased labor and benefit costs through increased
prices, our business and results of operations may be materially adversely affected. In addition, approximately
90% of our associates are covered by collective bargaining agreements. with local labor unions. Although we do
not anticipate any difficulty renegotiating these contracts as they expire, a labor-related work stoppage by these
unionized employees could adversely affect our business and results of operations.

We face the risk of being held liable for environmental damages that may occur. Our operations subject us to
‘various laws and regulations relating to the’protection of the environment, including those governing the
management and disposal of hazardous materials and- the cleanup of contaminated sites. Under some
environmental laws, such as the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of
1980, also known as CERCLA or the Superfund law, and similar state statutes, responsibility for the entire cost
of cleanup of a contaminated site can be imposed upon any current or former site owners or operators, of upon
any party who sent waste to the site, regardless of the lawfulness of the original activities that led to the
contamination.. From time to time we have been named as one of many potentially responsible parties at
Superfund sites, although our share of liability has typically been de minimis. We believe we are currently in
substantial compliance with applicable environmental requirements. However, future developments such as
more aggressive enforcement policies, new laws or discovery of unknown conditions may require expenditures
that may have a material adverse effect on our business and financial condition.

Item 2. Prepemﬁeg*

. As of February 1,-2003, we operated 144 supermarkets located in New York, New Jersey, Pennsylvania
and Delaware as follows:’ .

Number
State v of Stores
N W JoTSEY ettt ettt sra et e saevee b sre s nenesenens 66
New YOrk ..ovvvverinnrivenninns ettt e et ettt et et b s ae s aesa st s aebanee . 56
PeNNSYIVANIA....civeeveceeriereriee ettt st e st e e e e e s asentssasennens 18
DElaWare . .iv.cunvrrererresssnneessiens S OO P OO OT RO _4
TOtAL. e et e et e e et b ent e e benrens 144

Our 144 supermarkets have total square footage of approximately 7.5 million square feet with an aggregate
selling area of approximately 5.6 million square feet. Fifteen of these stores are owned and the remaining 129
are leased. These supermarkets are either freestanding stores or are located in shopping centers. Thirty-nine
leases will expire through fiscal 2007 and there are options to renew 38 of them.

We lease our corporate headquarters in Carteret, New Jersey in premises totahng approxrmately 150,000
square feet in size. Our lease will exprre in ﬁscal 2011 We have five five-year optrons remaining on this
property.

All of the facilities owned by us are subject to mortgages. We plan to acquire leasehold or fee interests in
any property on which new stores or other facilities are opened and will consider entering into sale/leaseback

or mortgage transactions with respect to owned properties if we believe such transactions are ﬁnancrally .
advantageous.

We operate a 290,00Q square foot leased general merchandise and health and beauty care products
distribution center in Edison, New Jersey. Our lease will expire in fiscal 2004. We have three five-year
options remaining on this property. :

* Unless otherwise indicated, all information in Item 2 is given as of February 1, 20C3.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are subject to claims and suits against us in the ordinary course of our business. While the outcome of
these claims cannot be predicted with certainty, we do not believe that the outcome of any of these legal

matters will have a material adverse effect on our consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash
flows,

item 4. Submission of Matters td a Vote of Security Holders

None.

Item 4A. Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following table sets forth the name, age as of April 15, 2003, principal occupation or employment at
the present time and during the last five years, and the name of any corporation or other organization in which
such occupation or employment is or was conducted, of our executive officers, all of whom are citizens of the’
United States and serve at the discretion of our Board of Directors. Our executive officers listed below were

elected to office for an indefinite period of time. No family relationship exists between any executive officer
and any other executive officer or director.

Officer of the
Name Age ' Pgsitions apd Office ’ Company Since
Eileen R. Scott 50 Chief Executive Officer since October 2002; Executive Vice 1998
President, Store Operations from November 2001 until October
2002; Executive Vice President, Marketing and Distribution
prior thereto. Ms. Scott joined us in 1969. (1)
* Frank G. Vitrano 47 President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer since October 1995
2002; Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and
Treasurer from January 2000 until October 2002; Senior Vice
President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer from September
1998 to January 2000; Vice President and Treasurer prior
thereto. Mr. Vitrano joined us in 1972. (1)
RobertJ. Joyce 57 Executive Vice President, Human Resources and Administration 1989
- since January 2000; Senior Vice President, Administration prior
thereto. Mr. Joyce joined us in 1963.
Herbert A. Whitney 53 Executive Vice President, Marketing and Logistics since 2001

November ~ 2001; Senior Vice President, Non-Perishable
Merchandising prior thereto. Mr. Whitney joined us in 1966.

Joseph W. Adelhardt 36  Senior Vice President and Controller. Mr. Adelhardt joined us 1987

in 1976.

Harvey M. Gutman 57 Senior Vice President, Retail Development. Mr. Gutrhan jdined 1990
us in 1976.

Marc A. Strassler 54  Senior Vice President, Secretary and General Counsel since May 1987

1998; Vice President, Secretary and General Counsel prior
thereto. Mr. Strassler joined us in 1974.

(1) Member of the Board of Directors.
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Part 1L

Item S. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

Market for Common Stock. Common stock and warrants are currently trading on the Nasdaq National
Market under the ticker symbols “PTMK” and “PTMKW?, respectively. The following table represents the

high and low closing sales prices for our common stock for each quarter in the two fiscal years ended February
1,2003, as reported by the Nasdaq National Market..

Fiscal 2002: o :

1% quarter......... ettt ettt bt ene $24.70 $22.00
2% QUATET 1ovvoeoovecerrrsces oo 2322 15.75
3" quarter ..o, SOOI 1626 440
4™ QUATLET....orrveeemereereeeenceeesesens SRR 5.93 2.98
Fiscal 2001: ,

1% QUATLET ..t $19.09 $16.00
2™ QUATTET oot 25.13 18.83
K I . [ B 21.59
4% QUATEET...vovoeeece e 25.92 21.66

Holders of Record. As of April 2, 2003, there were 45 holders of record of our common stock; however,

over 99% of the Company’s outstanding common stock is held in “street name” by depositories or nominees
on behalf of beneficial holders.

Dividends. We paid no cash dividends to our stockholders and do not currently anticipate paying cash
dividends during fiscal 2003. We are prohibited from paying cash dividends to holders of our common stock
under our credit agreement. We are restricted from paying cash dividends to holders of our common stock
under the indenture governing our $200 million 8.75% senior subordinated notes due 2012.
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H&em 6. Selected Fmammﬂ Data

Summary of Hnsmmwﬂ C@mwhd}aﬁed} Financial and Other Data

The following tables present selected historical consolidated financial and other data. The periods prior to our exit
from Chapter 11 have been designated “Predecessor Company” and the pericds subsequent to that date have been
. designated “Successor Company.” The statement of operations data for the 52 weeks ended February 1, 2003 and
February 2, 2002, the 20 weeks ended February 3, 2001 and the 33 weeks ended September 16, 2000 and the balance
sheet data as of February 1, 2003 and February 2, 2002 are derived from our audited consolidated financial statements
included elsewhere in this report. The statement of operations data for the 52 weeks ended January 29, 2000 and January
30, 1999 and the balance sheet data as of February 3, 2001, January 29, 2000 and January 30, 1999 are derived from our

audited financial statements not included in this report.

The following table (in millions, excepf per share amounts) should be read in conjunction with “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and our consolidated financial statements

included elsewhere in this report:

Successor Compmy ()

Predecessor Company (a)

" See notes on the following pages.
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52 Weeks 52 Weeks 20 Weeks 33 Weeks 52 Weeks 52 Weeks
Ended Ended " Ended ~ Ended Ended Ended
February 1, February2, February3, September 16, January 29, January 30,
2003 2002 2001 2000 2000 1999
- ‘Statement of @pemﬁu@ms Data: ‘ ‘
8aleS.c it $ 39377 3 39633 § 14937 $ 23482 8§ 36981 $ 36552
Cost of 200ds SOId (D) ....cocreereriieimiiririninneeceees (2,816.7) (2,855.6) (1,072.6) (1,688.5) (2,639.4)  (2,612.0)
Gross profit.....cceevceennd TSRO 1,121.0 - 1,1607.7 421.1 659.7 1,058.7 1,043.2
Selling, general and administrative expenses (b)......... (944.4) (920.4) (339.3) (549.7) (850.3) (832.4)
Depreciation anid amortization...........ccoeciureeeernnn s (84.6) {(76.7) (25.8) (48.0) as.n (77.5)
Reorganization income (expenses), net () .......c........ — — 7.4 (0.9) — —_
Amortization of goodwill (d). ........... e — (265.5) (98.5) — — —
Operating earnings (10SS) .......ccovvrvreerneecrionaccrenenenien 92.0 (154.9) (35.1) 61.1 133.3 1333
Interest expense, NEt (€) ......covereivevereinecnnrncernenenenne (65.1) (65.3) (217 {99.1) (163.1) (161.3)
Net earnings (loss) before income taxes, \ ’
extraordinary items and cumulative effect of
an accounting change...........coeveveenvenreccncrerncans 269 (220.2) (62.8) (38.0) (29.8) (28.0)
Income tax provision ..........ccceveorecene SRS « (13.0) (18.5) (14.7 (0.1 2.5 (1.7
Net earnings (loss) before extraordmary items and . : :
cumulative effect of an accounting change............. 139 (238.7) (71.5) (38.1) 31.9) (29.7) .
. Extraordinary items, net of tax (£).c.....cccovcrivvuvrerrinicns _ (3.3) — 313.7 — —
Net earnings (loss) before cumulative effect of B :
an accounting change...........cocovveinisioiinniiecc s - 139 (242.0) (71.5) 275.6 31.9) (29.7)
Cumulative effect of an accounting change _ .
net of tax (b) .oovvvceicicce e - (0.6) — — . — _— —
Net earnings (l0ss) ............. et $ 133 8§ (24200 S (77.5) 5 2756 8 (319 $  (291)
Net earnings (loss) per share — basic and diluted (g) : '
Net earnings (loss) before extraordinary items -
and cumulative effect of an accounting change... $ 046 $§ (796) $  (2.58)
Extraordinary items, net of tax..... .............. , — 0.11) S
Cumulative effect of an accounting change,
net Of taX oo, . (0.02) = —
Net earnings (loss) . $ 044 5 (807) § (258)
Balance Sheet Data (end of period): ]
Cash and cash equivalents.............. s $§ 113 S 246 3 84.6 s 162. § 7.9
Total assets ...ovevriieinriiines freeenes [T 1,522.6 1,495.5 1,725.4 843.2 - 826.5
Long-termdebt ......cooccveninnee. - 439.4 440.6 4441 1,264.1 1,258.5
Long-term lease obligations - 1829 172.8 177.2 1733 .160.8
Total debt, including lease obligations.......... e o 652.9 639.6 647.8 1,541.6 1,457.2
Exchangeable preferred stock and accrued dividends. — — — 2358 216.7
Stockholders’ equity (deficiency) ....ccccoccvivniiiienne, 356.8 344.4 589.0 (1,434.4) (1,383.8)




Notes to Summary of Historical Consgﬁﬁdzﬁed Financial and Other Data

Successor Company Predecessor Company
52 Weeks 52 Weeks 20 Weeks 33 Weeks 52 Weeks 52 Weeks
Ended Ended Ended Ended Ended Ended
_February 1, February2, ' February3, | September 16, January 29, January 30,
2003 - 20802 - 2001 2000 2000 1999
Other Data (dollars in millions): '
Same-store sales increase (decrease)........cc.cccvunenn. 1. N% 2.5% 0.9%- 0.2)% 0.6% 0.7%
Capital expenditures, including property acquired
under capital leases and technology investments.... $ 121.1  $130.5 § 244 $ 425 $ 876 § 545

() We completed our plan of reorganization and formally exited Chapter 11 on September 19, 2000, the

(b)

(©)

“Plan Effective Date.” As a result, we adopted fresh-start reporting in accordance with American
Institute. of Certified Public Accountants Statement of Position 90-7, “Financial Reporting By Entities in
Reorganization Under the Bankruptcy Code” (“Fresh-Start Reporting”). In connection with the adoption
of Fresh-Start Reporting, a new entity had been deemed created for financial reporting purposes. The
periods presented prior to the Plan Effective Date have been designated “Predecessor Company” and the
periods subsequent to the Plan Effective Date have been designated “Successor Company” with
September 16, 2000, the Saturday nearest the Plan Effective Date, utilized for the accounting closing
date related to the Predecessor Company financial statements. As a result of the implementation of
Fresh-Start Reporting and the substantial debt reduction from the completion of the plan of

reorganization, the results of operations and balance sheets’ of the Successor Company and. the
Predecessor Company are not comparable.

Pursuant to the plan of reorganization, our direct and indirect parent companies merged with us and we

became the surviving entity. These mergers are being accounted for at historical cost in a manner similar to .

pooling-of-interests . accounting. Accordingly the historical financial information' of the Predecessor
Company presented herein-reflects the financial-position and results of operations of the combined entity.

The Company adopted, as of the beginning of fiscal 2002, Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No.
02-16, “Accounting by a_Customer (Including a Reseller) for Certain Consideration Received from a
Vendor”. It has been the Company’s accounting policy to record vendor allowances and rebates as a
reduction of cost of goods sold when both the required contractual terms are completed and the inventory is
sold. It was also the Company’s accounting policy to recognize vendor payments for the reimbursement of
the Company’s advertising costs as a reduction of advertising expense when the required advertising is
performed. In adopting EITF Issue No. 02-16, the Company recorded vendor payments related to
advertising reimbursements as a reduction of cost of goods sold when both the required advertising is
performed and the inventory is sold. As a result, the Company recorded a charge of $0.6 million, net of
tax, for the cumulative effect of an accounting change, as of the beginning of fiscal 2002. In addition, as a
result of EITF Issue No. 02-16, vendor payments of $17.7 million in fiscal 2002 related to advertising
teimbursements, previously classified as a reduction of selling, general and administrative expenses, were
reclassified as a reduction of cost of goods sold. Prior year financial statements were not reclassified.
Excluding the charge for the cumulative effect of this accounting change, the impact of EITF Issue No. 02-
16 on the Company’s net earnings for fiscal 2002 was not significant.

The Successor Company’s reorganization income of $7.4 million for the 20 weeks ended February 3,
2001 is comprised of a gain related to the difference between the settled lessor claims for rejected leases
and the liability previously recorded for such claims. The Predecessor Company’s reorganization
expenses of $0.9 million for the 33 weeks ended September 16, 2000 are comprised of $19.1 million of
fees directly attributable to the plan of reorganization, net of a gain of $18.2 million related to the

difference between the estimated lessor claims for rejected leases and the liabilities previously recorded
for such leases.
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Notes to Summary of His&dﬁ‘ﬁcaﬁ Consolidated Financial and Other Data — (Continued)

The goodwill of $798.0 million, resulting from Fresh-Start Reporting, was being amortized over three
years. . The Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142,
“Goodwili and Other Intangible Assets,” effective with the beginning of fiscal 2002. With the adoption
of SFAS No. 142, goodwill is no longer being amortized but rather is being evaluated for impairment at
least annually. Based on an independent evaluation of its fair value completed when SFAS No. 142 was
adopted in the first quarter of fiscal 2002, the Company concluded that there was no impairment of its
goodwill. The Company performed its annual evaluation of its goodwill in the fourth quarter of fiscal
2002, and, based on an independent evaluation of its fair value concluded that there was no 1mpa1m‘\ent

of its goodw111

As a result of our Chapter 11 filing on July 12, 2000, the “Petition Date,” no principal or interest
payments were made on or after the Petition Date on our subordinated debt. Accordingly, no interest
expense for such subordinated debt has been accrued on or after the Petition Date. Such contractual

* interest would have increased the Predecessor Company’s interest expense by $11.4 million for the 33

weeks ended September 16, 2000.

In ﬁscal 2001, the Successor Company s extraordinary item of $3.3 million, net of an income tax benefit of
$2.3 million, represents costs incurred resulting from the early extinguishment of debt, including the write-
off of deferred financing costs, related to the pay down of a portion of our credit agreement from certain of
the proceeds of the $200 million senior subordinated notes issued on January 29, 2002. In the 33 weeks
ended September 16, 2000, the Predecessor Company’s extraordinary item of $313.7 million, net of an
income tax provision of $46.6 million, represents the cancellation of debt related to the exchange of bond
indebtedness and accrued interest for common stock and warrants; such income was reduced by the write-
off of deferred financing costs related to the former bank credit facility and bond indebtedness subject to
exchange. Since the realization of such income occurred under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code, we did not
recognize income from the cancellation of debt for tax purposes, but elected to reduce, at the beginning of
fiscal 2001, the basis of our depreciable property and, with the remaining income from the cancellation of

_ debt, to reduce our net operating loss tax carryforwards. The tax provision related to the extraordinary item

in the 33 weeks ended September 16, 2000 was based on the -deferred tax impact of the tax attnbute
reductions, net of the valuatlon allowance reversal related to certain deferred tax assets.

‘The weighted average number of shares outstanding — basic were 30.1 million shares for fiscal 2002 and

30.0 million shares for fiscal 2001 and for the 20 weeks ended February 3, 2001. The weighted average
number of shares outstanding — diluted were 30.4 million shares for fiscal 2002 and 30.0 million shares
for fiscal 2001 and for the 20 weeks ended February 3, 2001. For fiscal 2001 and for the 20 weeks ended
February 3, 2001, all stock options, warrants and restricted stock were excluded from the computation of
weighted average number of shares outstanding — diluted because their effect would have been anti-

dilutive. Data is not presented for the Predecessor Company due to the significant change in our capital
structure.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

General

We are a leading supermarket chain in the Northeast, ‘operating 144 supermarkets in the densely populated
New York-New Jersey and Philadelphia metropolitan areas. These metropolitan areas contain over 10% of the

population in the United States. All of .our supermarkets are located within 100 miles of our corporate office in
Carteret, New Jersey.

Fiscal 2002 compared to Fiscal 2001

The following table sets forth selected consolidated statements of operations data (dollars in millions):

52 Weeks Ended
February 1, 2003 o February 2, 2002
‘ Amount - % Amount %o

SALES ..crieitinnirirnt ettt st as s s s e e s e e e Sanabate $ 39377 100.0% $ 3,963.3 100.0%’
Gross profit ...coceveenesseeercrcnnnnn, ettt e .. % 11210 285% § 1,107.7 27.9%
Selling, general and administrative EXPenses......c.coceeeeeeerrrerrreens (9444 - (24.0) (920.4) (23.2)
Depreciation and amortization ..........iveceer.. et daess . (84.6) 22 (76.7) (1.9)
Amortization of 2o0AWill .......ccceveiiiriiiieieeen e —_ - (265.5) (6.7)
Operating earnings (10S8).....ccvcerervenrenrsenesivnnrninencessevanens S 92.0 23 (154.9) (3.9
INEIESt EXPENSE, NEL...cvvvrrurrrieessvesesesrrreeeereeserssesessens s (65.1) (1.7) (65.3) (1.6)
Eamings (loss) before income taxes, extraordinary item '

and cumulative effect of an accountmg change......... reeeneenenes 269 0.6 (220.2) (5.5)
INCOME taX PIOVISION ....cvueevreceecnicrsinriereiceneeriecssbesssrssaraessesssnss (13.0) (0.3) (18.5) (0.5)
Earnings (loss) before extraordinary item and cumulatlve : . :

effect of an accounting change.................. ettt s et saanenns 13.9 03’ (238.7) (6.0)
Extraordinary item, net 0f taX ......covivecrerereeisreernissinsenessssseessisnes — — (3.3) 0.1
Earnings (loss) before cumulative effect of an accounting '

CHANIZE .o vveveeeesse et sse b st sssssansssesenes 139 0.3 (242.0) (6.1)
Cumulative effect of an accounting change, net of tax................. (0.6) — — —
Net earnings (108S) veevreriereremeenieninrreenroeees e 3 133 03% § (242.0) {6.1)%

Cumulative Effect of an Accounting Change. The Company adopted, as of the beginning of fiscal 2002, EITF
Issue No. 02-16. It has been the Company’s accounting policy to record vendor allowances and rebates as a
reduction of cost of goods sold when both the required contractual terms are completed and the inventory is sold.
It was also the Company’s accounting policy to recognize vendor payments for the reimbursement of the
Company’s advertising costs as a reduction of advertising expense when the required advertising is performed.
In adopting EITF Issue No. 02-16, the Company recorded vendor payments related to advertising'
reimbursements as a reduction of cost of goods sold when both the required advertising is performed and the
inventory is sold. As a result, the Company recorded a charge of $0.6 million, net of tax, for the cumulative
effect of an accounting change, as of the beginning of fiscal 2002. In addition, as a result of EITF Issue No. 02-
16, vendor payments of $17.7 million in fiscal 2002 related to advertising reimbursements, previously classified
as a reduction of selling, general and administrative expenses, were reclassified as a reduction of cost of goods’
sold. Prior year financial statements were not reclassified. Excluding the charge for the cumulative effect of this

accounting change, the 1rnpact of EITF Issue No. 02- 16 on the Company’s net earnings for fiscal 2002 was not
significant.
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Sales. Sales in fiscal 2002 were $3.94 billion compared to $3.96 billion in fiscal 2001, a decrease of 0.6%.
The sales decrease in fiscal 2002 was primarily due to lower same-store sales (stores opened the entire year in
both fiscal 2002 and fiscal 2001, including replacement stores and enlargements) of 1.7% and closed stores,
partially offset by new store sales. We believe sales were negatively impacted by weak economic conditions and
declining consumer confidence in our region and its resultant effect on consumer spending. These same
conditions resulted in increased promotional activity within our marketplace. During fiscal 2002, we opened
seven new stores (including one former Grand Union store we purchased in fiscal 2001), three of which were

replacement stores, closed one store and completed 11 store renovations. We operated 144 stores and 141
stores at the end of fiscal 2002 and fiscal 2001, respectively.

Gross Profit. Gross profit represents. the difference between sales and cost of goods, which includes the
costs of inventory sold and the related purchase and distribution costs, net of earned vendor allowances and
rebates. Gross profit in fiscal 2002 was $1.12 billion or 28.5% of sales compared te $1.11 billion or 27.9% of
sales for fiscal 2001. The increase in gross profit of $13.3 million for fiscal 2002 compared to fiscal 2001 was
primarily due to the impact of EITF Issue No. 02-16, in which vendor payments of $17.7 million in fiscal 2002
related to advertising reimbursements, previously classified as a reduction of selling, general and
administrative expenses, were reclassified as a reduction of cost of goods sold. Excluding this reclassification,
the decrease in gross profit of $4.4 million for fiscal 2002 compared to fiscal 2001 was due to lower sales and
higher shrink, partially offset by higher vendor allowances and rebates.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses (“SG&A"). SG&A in fiscal 2002 increased $24.0 million or
2.6% compared to fiscal 2001. This increase in SG&A was primarily due to the impact of EITF Issue No. 02-
16, in which vendor payments of $17.7 million in fiscal 2002 related to advertising reimbursements,
previously classified as a reduction of SG&A, were reclassified as a reduction of cost of goods sold.
Excluding this reclassification, SG&A increased $6.3 million in fiscal 2002 compared-to fiscal 2001 due to
higher store costs related to labor, union health and welfare contributions and rent, partially offset by lower
administrative expenses and favorable customer accident claims expense. ‘

Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization of 384.6 million in fiscal 2002 was $7.9
million higher than the $76.7 million in fiscal 2001. The increase in depreciation and amortization expense in

fiscal 2002 compared to fiscal 2001 was primarily due to the impact of cur stepped-up capital program and
technology initiatives.

Amortization of Goodwill. The Company adopted SFAS No. 142 effective with the beginning of fiscal
2002. With the adoption of SFAS No. 142, goodwill is no longer being amortized but rather is being evaluated
for impairment at least annually. Amortization of goodwill was $265.5 million in fiscal 2601. Based on an
independent evaluation of its fair value completed when SFAS No. 142 was adopted in the first quarter of
fiscal 2002, the Company concluded that there was no impairment of its goodwill. The Company performed
its annual evaluation of its goodwill in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, and, based on an independent
evaluation of its fair value, concluded that there was no impairment of its goodwill.

Operating Earnings (Loss). Operating eamings were $92.0 million in fiscal 2002 compared to an
operating loss of $154.9 million in fiscal 2001. The increase in operating earnings in fiscal 2002 compared to

an operating loss in fiscal 2001 was primarily due to the amortization of goodwill of $265.5 million in fiscal
2001. '

Interest Expense, Net. Interest expense was $65.1 million in fiscal 2002 compared to $65.3 million in fiscal
. 2001. Fiscal 2002 included the reversal of an accrued interest liability of $2.2 million related to the favorable -
resolution of certain tax issues. Excluding the reversal of the accrued interest liability, the increase in interest

expense in fiscal 2002 compared to fiscal 2001 was primarily due to higher borrowings.
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Income Tax Provision. The income tax provision was $13.0 million and $18.5 million in fiscal 2002 and
fiscal 2001, respectively. Refer to Note 19 of the consolidated financial statements for information related to
our income taxes. During fiscal 2002, we made income tax payments of $4.1 million and received income tax

refunds of $2.6 million. During fiscal 2001, we made income tax payments of $1.0 million and received
income tax refunds of $15,000.

Extraordinary Item. In fiscal 2001, the extraordinary item of $3.3 million, net of an income tax benefit of
$2.3 million, represents costs incurred resultinig from the early extinguishment of debt, including the write-off of

deferred financing costs, related to the pay down of a portion of the credit agreement from certain of the proceeds
of the $200 million senior subordinated notes issued on January 29, 2002.

Summary of Operations. Net earnings in fiscal 2002 were $13.3 million compared to a net loss of $242.0

million in fiscal 2001. The increase in net earnings in fiscal 2002 compared to a net loss in fiscal 2001 was
primarily due to lower operating earnings.

Fiscal 2001 compared to Fiscal 2000

We formally exited from Chapter 11 effective September 19, 2000, which we refer to as the “Plan Effective
Date”. For financial reporting purposes, we accounted for the consummation of the plan of reorganization
effective September 16, 2000, the Saturday nearest the Plan Effective Date. Fresh-Start Reporting resulted in
significant changes to the valuation of certain of our assets and liabilities, and to our stockholders’ equity.
With the adoption of Fresh-Start Reporting, a new entity was deemed created for financial reporting purposes.
The periods prior to the Plan Effective Date have been designated “Predecessor Company” and the periods
subsequent to the Plan Effective Date have been designated “Successor Company”. As a result of the
implementation of Fresh-Start Reporting and the substantial debt reduction from the completion of the plan of
reorganization, the results of operations of the Successor Company and the Predecessor Company are not
comparable. In order to provide a more meaningful analysis of the trends of certain operating accounts,
management’s discussion includes the pro forma combined results of the Successor Company’s 20 weeks
ended February 3; 2001 -and the Predecessor Company’s 33 weeks ended September 16, 2000.

The following table sets forth selected consolidated statements of operations data (dollars in millions):

Successor Comp‘any : v Predecessor Company
52 Weeks Ended 20 Weeks Ended 33 Weeks Ended
February 2, 2002 February 3, 20601 September 16, 2000
. Amount ) % Amount % Amount %
SAIES ..vverieeee e e er $3,9633 100.0% $1,493.7 100.0% |$2,348.2 100.0%
GTOSS PIOfIt c.vvvereeeiriere e e aes $1,107.7 279% § 4211 - 282% |$ 659.7 28.1% -
Selling, general and administxative‘expenses . (9204 (23.2) (339.3) (271 (549.7y (234)
Depreciation and AMOTtiZation ......veeereeernen.... (76.7) (1.9) (25.8) 1.7 (48.0) 2.1
Reorganization income (expense)................... — — 7.4 0.5 (0.9) —

- Amortization of g00dWill ...........cocorrrrrrvvrrerenr, (2655)  (67) . (985  (6.7) — —
Operating earnings (10S8)......cccveveeerrnrercereerne (154.9) (3.9) (35.1) (2.4) 61.1 2.6
Interest expense, net ..o rvcivccinncniniinine (65.3) (1.6) 27.7) (1.8) (99.1) (4.2)
Loss before income taxesand

extraordinary Hem.....coccvevicvericmnieceiie e, (220.2) (5.5) (62.8) 4.2) . (38.0) (1.6)
Income tax Provision .........cecverereevenenreecornnranes (18.5) (0.5) (14.7) (1.0) (0.1) —
Loss before extraordinary item ............cvue... (238.7) 6.0) (77.5) (5.2) (38.1) (1.6)
Extraordinary item, net of taX.........cccooevinnnne (3.3) 0.1 — — 313.7 13.3
Net earnings (1088) ..cccveevrereiierevecriennan. eeeaienes $ (242.0) 6.1)% 3§ (77.5) (5.2)% 1% 275.6 11.7%

17




Sales. Sales in fiscal 2001 were $3.96 billion compared to sales on a combmed Predecessor Company and -
Successor Company pro forma basis of $3.84 billion in fiscal 2000, an increase of 3.2%. Total sales,
excluding the extra week in fiscal 2000, increased 5.1% in fiscal 2001. The sales increase in fiscal 2001 was
primarily due tc higher same-store sales (stores opened the entire year in both fiscal 2001 and fiscal 2000,
including replacement stores and enlargements and excluding the extra week in fiscal 2000) of 2.5% and new
stores. Sales in fiscal 2001 also benefited from our various post-restructuring initiatives and increased
promotional spending, such as double coupons. During fiscal 2001, we opened five new stores, closed two

stores and completed 34 store renovations. We operated 141 and 138 stores at the end of fiscal 2001 and fiscal
2000, respectively. ‘

Gross Profit. Gross profit represents the difference between sales and cost of goods, which includes the
costs of inventory sold and the related purchase and distribution costs, net of earned vendor allowances and
rebates. Gross profit in fiscal 2001 was $1.11 billion or 27.9% of sales compared to gross profit on a
- combined Predecessor Company and Successor Company pro forma basis of $1.08 billion or 28.1% of sales
for fiscal 2000, which is comprised of 28.2% for the Successor Company’s 20 weeks ended February 3, 2001
and 28.1% for the Predecessor Company’s 33 weeks ended September 16, 2000. The increase in gross profit
of $26.9 million for fiscal 2001 compared to the pro forma gross profit on a combined Predecessor Company
and Successor Company basis for fiscal 2000 was due to higher sales, partially offset by higher promotional
expenses and shrink. The decrease in gross profit percentage in fiscal 2001 was primarily due to the impact of
our promotional initiatives to generate sales and higher shrink.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. SG&A in fiscal 2001 increased $31.4 million or 3.5%
compared to SG&A on a combined Predecessor Company and Successor Company pro forma basis for fiscal
2000. This increase in SG&A was primarily due to higher expenses related to store labor and related benefits
and occupancy as well as preopening expenses of $2.5 miilion related to the six former Grand Union stores and a
charge of $1.8 million related to closing of two stores on August 4, 2001, partially offset by income of $3.3
million resulting from the partial settlement of a lawsuit related to price fixing of prescription drugs. Included in
the Predecessor Company’s 33 weeks ended September 16, 2000 were gains on the sale of certain real estate
of $1.8 million and included in the Successor Company’s 20 weeks ended February 3, 2001 was an extra
week. As a percentage of sales, SG&A was 23.2% in fiscal 2001 and 23.1% on a combined Predecessor
Company and Successor Company pro forma basis in' fiscal 2000, which is comprised of 22.7% for the

Successor Company’s 20 weeks ended February 3, 2001 and 23.4% for the Predecessor Company’s 33 weeks
ended September 16, 2000, respectively. . :

Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization was $76.7 million compared to $25.8
million in the Successor Company’s 20 weeks ended February 3, 2001 and $48.0 million in the Predecessor
Company’s 33 weeks ended September 16, 2000. The depreciation and amortization expense in fiscal 2001
includes the impact of our increased capital expenditure program and technology initiatives.

Reorganization Income (Expense). The Successor Company’s reorganization income of $7.4 million in the
20 weeks ended February 3, 2001 represented a gain related to the difference between the settled lessor claims
for rejected leases and the liability previously recorded for such claims by the Predecessor Company. The
Predecessor Company’s reorganization expenses of $0.9 million in the 33 weeks ended September 16, 2000 were
comprised of $19.1 million of employee retention bonuses and professional fees related to legal, accounting and
- consulting services directly attributable to the plan of reorganization, net of a gain of $18.2 million related to the

difference between the estimated lessor claims for rejected leases and the liabilities previously recorded for such
leases. :

Amortization of Goodwill, Goodwill recorded in accordance with Fresh-Start Reporting was being
amortized over three years, but in accordance with SFAS No. 142, effective with the beginning of fiscal 2002,
the Successor Company will no longer amortize goodwill but rather will evaluate it at least annually for

impairment. Amortization expense for the Successor Company was $265.5 million in fiscal 2001 and $98.5
million in the 20 weeks ended February 3, 2001.
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Operating Earnings (Loss). The Successor Company’s operating losses were $154.9 million in fiscal 2001
and $35.1 million in the 20 weeks ended February 3, 2001 compared to operating earnings of $61.1 million in

the Predecessor Company’s 33 weeks ended September 16, 2000. The Successor Company’s operating losses
were primarily due to the amortization of goodwill. .

Interest Expense, Net. The Successor Company’s interest expense was $65.3 million in fiscal 2001 and
$27.7 million in the 20 weeks ended February 3, 2001 compared to $99.1 million for the Predecessor
Company’s 33 weeks ended September 16, 2000. The Successor Company has lower interest expense
. compared to the Predecessor Company primarily due to the cancellation of $1.0 billion of the Predecessor

Company’s subordinated debt under our plan of reorganization. Interest expense in fiscal 2001 benefited from
lower LIBOR borrowing rates under our credit agreement. :

Income Tax Provision. Refer to Note 19 of the consolidated financial statements for information related to
our income taxes. During fiscal 2001, we made income tax payments of $1.0 million and received income tax

refunds of $15,000. During fiscal 2000, we made income tax payments of $0.2 million and received income
tax refunds of $0.5 million. ‘

Extraordinary Item. In fiscal 2001, the Successor Company’s extraordinary item of $3.3 million, net of an
income tax benefit of $2.3 million, represents costs incurred resulting from the early extinguishment of debt,
including the write-off of deferred financing costs, related to the pay down of a portion of the credit agreement
from certain of the proceeds of the $200 million senior subordinated notes issued on January 29, 2002. In the 33
weeks ended September 16, 2000, the Predecessor Company’s extraordinary item of $313.7 million, net of an
income tax provision of $46.6 million, represents income from the cancellation of debt related to the exchange of
bond indebtedness and accnied interest for common stock and warrants; such income was reduced by the write-

off of deferred financing costs related to the former bank credit facility and bond indebtedness subject to
exchange. , :

 Summary of Operations. The Successor Company’s net loss in fiscal 2001 was $242.0 million compared to
a net loss of $77.5 million in the 20 weeks ended February 3, 2001 and net eamings of $275.6 million in the
Predecessor Company’s 33 weeks ended September 16, 2000. The Successor Company’s net losses were
_primarily due to the amortization of goodwill; the Predecessor Company’s net earnings included an extraordinary

item of $313.7 million, net of tax.
Liquidity and Capital Resources

As a result of the substantial debt reduction resulting from the plan of reoi’ganization in fiscal 2000, our

debt service and liquidity have improved significantly compared to the Predecessor Company's financial
condition. . . '

Cash Flows. The following table sets forth certain consolidated statements of cash flow data (in millions):

> Predecessor

Successor Company . Company

52 Weeks 52 Weeks 20 Weeks 33 Weeks
Ended Ended Ended Ended

February 1, February 2, February 3, September 16,
2003 2002 2001 2000
Cash provided by (used for): .

Operating actiVities...........covevvrvvrrsresrienieens e, %5 920 $ 826 % 399 $ 26.1

Investing activities ........c.ocoeeruenenne. (105.3) (116.5) (19.9) (15.5)
Finaricing activities ............... e et e — (26.1) (9.9) 47.7

The increase in cash provided by operating activities in fiscal 2002 compared to fiscal 2001 was primarily
due to a reduction in cash interest paid as a result of the timing of cash interest payments related to the senior
subordinated notes issued on January 29, 2002. The increase in cash provided by operating activities in fiscal

+
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2001 compared to a combined Predecessor Company and Successor Company pro forma basis in fiscal 2000
was primarily due to the reduction in cash interest paid due to the cancellation of $1 billion of the Predecessor
Company’s subordinated debt under our plan of reorganization and the increase in cash provided by operating
assets and liabilities. The decrease in cash used for investing activities in fiscal 2002 compared to fiscal 2001
was primarily due to a decrease in property and equipment expenditures. The increase in cash used for
investing activities in fiscal 2001 compared to a combined Predecessor Company and Successor Company
pro forma basis in fiscal 2000 was primarily due to an increase in capital expenditures, including technology
investments. The change in financing activities in fiscal 2002 compared to fiscal 2001 was primarily due to
borrowings under lease financings and the working capital facility in fiscal 2002. The increase in cash
provided by financing activities in fiscal 2001 compared to a combined Predecessor Company and Successor
Company pro forma basis in fiscal 2000 was primarily due to debt and lease paydowns in fiscal 2001
compared to the impact of the plan of reorganization in fiscal 2000.

Debt Service and Liquidity. Cn January 29, 2002, we issued $200 million aggregate principal amount of
unregistered 8.75% Senior Subo‘rdinated Notes due 2012 (the “Notes™), which pay cash interest on a semi-
annual basis. The proceeds from the issuance of the Notes were used to repay a portion of our outstanding
loans under our bank credit facility. and to repay, in the first quarter of fiscal 2002, $6.4 million of our
outstanding industrial revenue bonds. During the first quarter of fiscal 2002, we completed an exchange offer
pursuant to which all of the Notes were exchanged for $200 million aggregate principal amount of our
registered 8.75% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2012 (the “Senior Subordinated Notes”). The Senior
Subordinated Notes are unconditionally guaranteed as to payment of principal and interest by the subsidiary
guarantors and contain customary covenants. The indenture related to the Senior Subordinated Notes restricts

the payment of cash dividends. We are in compliance with all Senior Subordinated Notes covenants as of
February 1, 2003.

Upon the completion of our plan of reorganization, we entered into a credit agreement, dated as of September
19, 2000, with a group of lenders led by JP Morgan Chase Bank (the “Credit Agreement”). The Credit
Agreement initizlly consisted of (a) term loans in an aggregate principal amount of $425 million (consisting of
$125 mullion in Term Loan A and $300 million in Term Loan B) and (b) a $175 million revolving working
capital facility (including 2 maximum of $125 million in letters of credit). After giving effect to the prepayment
of indebtedness with the proceeds of the offering of the Senior Subordinated Notes, the Company had no
indebtedness under Term Loan A and $218.0 million under Term Loan B.

The Credit Agreement requires the Company to meet certain financial tests including, without limitation, a
maximum total debt to consolidated EBITDA (leverage) ratio, a minimum consolidated interest and.rental
expense coverage ratic, a minimum fixed charge ratio and a minimum consolidated EBITDA. In addition, the
Credit Agreement contains certain covenants which, among other things, places limits on the incurrence of
additional indebtedness, issuance of cash-pay preferred stock, repurchase of Company stock, incurrence of liens,
sale-leaseback ftransactions, hedging activities, sale or discount of receivables, investments, loans, advances,
guarantees, transactions with affiliates, asset sales, acquisitions, capital expenditures, mergers and consolidations,
changing lines of business, dividends or prepayments of other indebtedness, amendments to the organizational
documents and other matters customarily restricted in such agreements. The Credit Agreement contains:
customary events of default, including without limitation, payment defaults, material breaches of representations
and warranties, material covenant defaults, certain events of bankruptcy and insolvency, and a change of control.

In addition, the Credit Agreement prohibits the payment of cash dividends. The Company is in compliance with
all covenants as of February 1, 2003,

On January 28, 2003, the Company amended its Credit Agreement. Pursuant to this amendment, among
other things, the maximum permitted leverage ratio has been increased through fiscal 2004, the minimum
consolidated interest and rental expense coverage ratio has been decreased through 2004, the minimum
permitted consolidated EBITDA has been decreased through fiscal 2004, and a minimum fixed-charge
coverage ratio covenant has been added. Additionally, the Company has agreed to (i) an increase in the
commitment fee on the revolver portion of the Credit Agreement of 25.0 basis points; and (ii) an increase in
the applicable interest rates payable on outstanding balances under the Credit Agreement of 50.0 basis points.
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Borrowings under the Credit Agreement bear interest at floating rates equal to LIBOR, which was 1.3% as of
February 1, 2003, plus an applicable rate, subject to decrease, depending on the total debt to consolidated
EBITDA ratio. Effective January 28, 2003, the interest rate thereunder increased from LIBOR plus 3.0% to
LIBOR plus 3.5% for borrowings under the working capital facility and from LIBOR plus 4.0% to LIBOR plus
4.5% for borrowings under Term Loan B. The Company is required to repay a portion of the borrowing under
the term loan each year, so as to retire such indebtedness in its entirety by July 15, 2007. The working capital
facility expires on July 15, 2005. The weighted average interest rate in effect on all borrowings under the term
loan was 7.7% during fiscal 2002. As of February 1, 2003 and April 2, 2003, borrowings under the working

capital facility were $10.0 million and $7.1 rmlhon rcspectlvely, and outstanding letters of credit were $40.3
million and $41.3 million, respectively.

All of the obligations under the Credit Agreement are guaranteed by the Company’s 100% owned
subsidiaries, except the Company’s nonguarantor subsidiaries, which are comprised of four 100% owned and
consolidated single-purpose entities. Each of these single-purpose entities owns the real estate on which a
supermarket leased to Pathmark is located. The obligations under the Credit Agreement and those of the
subsidiaries guaranteeing the Credit Agreement are secured by substantially all of the Company’s tangible and

intangible assets including, without limitation, intellectual property, real property, mcludmg leasehold interests,
and the capital stock in each of these subsidiaries. ’

The following table presents significant obhgations as of February 1, 2003 (in rnillioris):

Self-Insured  Post-
Claims Employment Capital  Operating

‘ : Liabilities Benefits Leases Leases Debt Total
2003 e $208 $ 05 $ 364 % 457 $ 123 § 1157
2004 oovovooeeeeeee e 12.0 0.4 339 444 1.3 92.0
2005 e : 8.7 0.4 30.5 43.5 54.8 137.9
2006 ..o et 6.5. 0.4 255 - 403 108.4 181.1
2007 oo et 4.4 0.3 24.0 36.9 54.6 120:2
Thereafter....cooveviivieevicec e 12.5 5.9 250.8  319.0 220.3 808.5
Total ..o 64.9 7.9 401.1 529.8 451.7 1,455.4
Less: present-value interest.................... 2.7 (19) - (199.9) — — (204.9)
Present value of obligations.........c........ $622 § 60 $201.2 $5298 §$451.7 $1,2509

The $40.3 million in letters of credit outstandmg as of February 1, 2003 expire and are renewable 1n fiscal
2003.

In addition, we outsourced a major portion of our dxstnbutlon truckmg and information system functions
through long-term agreements as follows: :

e In April 2001, we entered into a five-year outsourcing agreement with IBM to continue to provide a wide

range of information systems services, which commenced in 1991. Under the agreement, IBM provides
data center operations, mainframe processing, business applications and systems development to
enhance our customer service and efficiency. The charges under this agreement are based upon the

services requested at predetermined rates. We may terminate the agreement upon 90 days notice with a
payment of a specified termination charge.

e We have a 15-year supply agreement with C&S, expiring in fiscal 2013, pursuant to which C&S supplies
substantially all of our grocery, froZzen and perishable merchandise requirements. Under our
arrangement with C&S, we negotiate prices, discounts and promotions with vendors. During fiscal
2002, the products supplied from C&S accounted for approximately 60% of all of our supermarket
inventory purchases. This agreement may be terminated for cause or certain events of bankruptcy by
either party.
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. e We alsc have an agreement, expiring in fiscal 2014, with a local trucking company to provide us with
trucking services. We may terminate this agreement with a payment of a specified termination charge.

Capital Expenditures. Capital expenditures, including property acquired under capital leases and
‘technology investments, were $121.1 million for fiscal 2002 compared to $130.5 million for fiscal 2001 and
$24.4 million in the Successor Company’s 20 weeks ended February 3, 2001 and $42.5 million in the
Predecessor Company’s 33 weeks ended September 16, 2000. During fiscal 2002, we opened seven new
stores (including one former Grand Union store we purchased in fiscal 2001), three of which were replacement
stores, closed one store and renovated 11 stores; in addition, we have installed new point-of-sale equipment in
all our stores and self-checkout systems in 73 stores. During fiscal 2001, we purchased six former Grand
Union stores and opened five of them as Pathmark stores; in addition, we renovated 34 stores and closed two
stores. In 2003, our capital expenditure plan is to invest approximately $95 million in new stores, major store

. renovations and technology investments. During fiscal 2003, we expect to open three new stores, one of
which will be a replacement store, close one store and complete 16 store rencvations.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions. The following accounting policies are considered

critical because changes tc certam judgments and assumptions inherent in these policies could affect our
financial statements.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets. It is our accounting policy to assess the carrying value of our long-lived
assets for possible impairment based on an individual store basis tc determine if the carrying value of such
assets are recoverable from their related undiscounted cash flows. We estimated future cash flows based on
several economic and business assumptions and have conciuded that there is no impairment of such assets at_
February 1, 2003. However, our estimates project cash flow several years into the future and could be affected -
by variable factors such as inflation and economic conditions. .

Impairment of Goodwill. The Company adopted SFAS No. 142 effective with the beginning of fiscal 2002.
With the adoption of SFAS No. 142, goodwill is no longer being amortized but rather is being evaluated for
impairment at least annually. Based on an independent evaluation of its fair value completed when SFAS No.
142 was adopted in the first quarter of fiscal 2002, the Company concluded that there was no impairment of its
goedwill. The Company performed its annual evaluation of its goodwill in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002,
and, based on an independent evaluation of its fair value, concluded that there was no impairment of its
goodwill. Since such impairment evaluation is based on several economic and business assumptions, the
goodwill impairment evaluation in the future could be affected by changes in these business and economic

conditions, changes in consumer spending, the competitive environment in which the Company operates and
other risks detailed elsewhere in this report.

Pension Plans. Pension incorne for all Company pension plans was $9.0 million for fiscal 2002, $8.8
" million for fiscal 2001 and $11.1 million on a combined Predecessor Company and Successor Company
pro forma basis for fiscal 2000 and is calculated based upon a number of actuarial assumptions, including an
expected long-term rate of return on our qualified plan (the “Qualified Plan”) assets of 9.5%. In developing
our expected long-term rate of return assumption, we evaluated input from our actuaries, including their
review of asset class return expectations by several respected consultants and economists as well as long-term
inflation assumptions. Projected returns by such consultants and economists are based on broad equity and
bond indices. We also considered our historical 10-year and 20-year compounded returns of 11.6% and
13.3%, respectively, which have been in excess of these broad equity and bond benchmark indices, despite the
_ recent market downturn in which our Qualified Plan assets had a loss of 6.1% for fiscal 2002. Our expected
long-term rate of return on Qualified Plan assets have been based on an asset allocation assumption of 70%
with equity managers, with an expected long-term rate of retumn of 11%, and 30% with fixed income
managers, with an expected long-term rate of return of 6%. Because of market fluctuation, our actual asset
allocation as of December 31, 2002 was 66% with equity managers and 34% with fixed income managers. We
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believe, however, that our long-term asset allocation on average will approximate 70% with equity managers
and 30% with fixed income managers. We regularly review our actual asset allocation and periodically
rebalance our investments to our targeted allocation when considered appropriate. As part of our on-going
process to evaluate our actuarial assumptions, including our expected rate of return, we are reducing our
expected long-term rate of return from 9.50% to 9.00% in fiscal 2003. A 0.5% reduction in our expected long-
term rate of return on Qualified Plan assets, holding all other factors constant, would have reduced our pension
income for fiscal 2002 by approximately $1.3 million. A 0.25% reduction in our discount rate and salary

increase assumptions, holding all other factors constant, would have reduced our pension income for fiscal 2002
by approximately $0.2 million.

We base our determination of pension expense or income on a market-related valuation of assets which
reduces year-to-year volatility. This market-related valuation recognizes investment gains or losses over a
three-year period from the year in which they occur. Investment gains or losses for this purpose are the
difference between the expected return calculated using the market-related value of assets and the actual return -
based on the market-related value of assets. Since the market-related value of assets recognizes gains or losses
over a three-year period, the future value of assets will be impacted as previously deferred gains or losses are
recorded. Over the 20 years prior to our plan of reorganization in fiscal 2000, we had generated and amortized
unrecognized net actuarial gains. As a result of our plan of reorganization in fiscal 2000, unrecognized net
actuarial gains of approximately $56.3 million were recorded on our consolidated balance sheet as part of Fresh--
Start Reporting. Since the completion of our plan of reorganization, we generated unrecognized net actuarial .
losses due to the unfavorable performance of the equity markets. As of February 1, 2003, we had cumulative
losses of approximately $71.7 million, which remain to be recognized in the calculation of the market-related
value of assets. These unrecognized net actuarial losses result in decreases in our future pension income

- -depending on several factors, including whether such losses at each measurement date exceed the corridor in
accordance with SFAS No. 87, “Employers’ Accounting for Pensions”.

The discount rate that we utilize for determining future pension obligations is based on a review of long-term
bonds that receive one of the two highest ratings given by a recognized rating agency. The discount rate
determined on this basis has decreased from 7.25% at February 2, 2002 to 6.50% at February 1, 2003.

Due to the effect of the unrecognized actuarial losses and based on an expected rate of return on our Qualified
Plan assets of 9.0%, a discount rate of 6.50% and various other assumptions, we estimate that our pension
income for all pension plans will approximate $6.4 million, $2.3 million and $0.8 million in fiscal 2003, fiscal
2004 and fiscal 2005, respectively. Future actual pension income will depend on future investment performance

changes in future discount rates and various other factors related to the populations participating in our pensmn
plans. :

The value of our Qualified Plan assets has decreased from $240.5 million at December 31, 2001 to $218.4
million at December 31, 2002. The investment performance returns and declining discount rates have reduced
our overfunded Qualified Plan, net of benefit obligations, from $91.5 million at December 31, 2001 to $56.8
million at December 31, 2002. Despite the recent reductions in the funded status of our Qualified Plan, we
-believe that, based on our actuarial assumptions and due to the overfunded status of our Qualified Plan, we will
not be required to make any cash contributions to our Qualified Plan for at least the next three years.

Self-Insured Claims Liabilities and Postemployment Benefits. We are self insured for claims relating to
customer, associate and vehicle accidents, as well as associate medical and disability benefits, and we maintain
third-party excess insurance coverage for such claims. It is our accounting policy to record a self-insured
liability, as determined actuarially on a consistent basis, based on the facts and circumstances of each
‘individual claim filed and an estimate of claims incurred but not yet reported discounted at a risk-free interest
rate. All claims and thejr related liabilities are reviewed and monitored on an ongoing basis. Any actuarial
projection of losses concerning such claims is subject to variability primarily due to external factors affecting
future inflation rates, litigation trends, benefit levels and claim settlement patterns. At February 1, 2003,

liabilities for self-insured claims and benefits were $62.2 million and for postemployment benefits were $6.0
million. -
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New Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations,” which
addresses financial accounting and reporting for obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived
assets and the associated asset retirement costs. SFAS No. 143 requires that asset retirement costs be capitalized
as part of the carrying amount of the long-lived asset and depreciated over the useful life of the related asset. The
provisions of SFAS No. 143 are required to be adopted effective with the beginning of fiscal 2003. The

Company believes that the adoption of SFAS No. 143 will not have an impact on its financial position or results
of operations.

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements 4, 44 and 64, Amendment
of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections.” SFAS No. 145, among other things, rescinds the
provisions of SFAS No. 4 that requires companies to classify certain gains and losses from debt
extinguishments as extraordinary items and amends the provisions of SFAS No. 13 to require that certain lease
modifications be treated as sale-leaseback transactions. The provisions of SFAS No. 145 related to
classification of debt extinguishments are effective with the beginning of fiscal 2003. The Company will
adopt SFAS No. 145 in fiscal 2003 by applying Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 30 to all
- gains and losses related to extinguishment of debt. Gains and losses from extinguishment of debt will be
classified within income from operations; upon adoption, prior year extraordinary items will be reclassified
within income from operations. The provisions of SFAS No. 145 related to lease modification are effective

for transactions occurring after May 15, 2002 and did not have an impact on the Company’s ﬁnamcma.l position
or results of operations.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities”, which addresses financial accounting and reporting for cost associated with exit or disposal
activities and nullifies EITF Issue No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination
Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring).” SFAS No.
146 requires that a liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity be recognized when the
liability is incurred rather than at the exit plan commitment date. The provisions of SFAS No. 146 are
effective for exit or disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002. The Company believes that the
adoption of SFAS No. 146 will not have a significant impact on its financial position or results of operations.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation (“FIN”) No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others.” FIN No. 45
elaborates on the existing disclosure requirements for most guarantees, including loan guarantees such as standby
letters of credit. It also clarifies that at the time a company issues a guarantee, the company must recognize an
initial liability for the fair value, or market value, of the obligation it assumes under the guarantee and must
disclose that information in its interim and annual financial statements. The provisions related to recognizing a
liability at inception of the guarantee for the fair value of the guarantor’s obligations do not apply to guarantees
accounted for as derivatives. The initial recognition and measurement provisions apply on a prospective basis to
guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002. The disclosure provisions are effective for fiscal 2002
(see Note 25). The Company does not expect adopting the initial recognition and measurement provisions of this
interpretation will have a material impact on its financial position or results of operations.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation —
Transition and Disclosure”, which amends SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” to
provide alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based method of accounting for
stock-based employee compensation. In addition, SFAS No. 148 amends the disclosure requirements of SFAS
No. 123 and APB Opinion No. 28, “Interim Financial Reporting,” to require prominent disclosures in both
annual and interim financial statements about the method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation
and the effect of the method used on reported results. The Company continues to apply APB Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Emplovees” and has adopted the amendments to SFAS No. 123 required in
SFAS No. 148 for fiscal 2002 year-end reporting. The Company will adopt the amendment to APB Opinion No.
28 required in SFAS No. 148 for quarterly reporting in the first quarter of fiscal 2003. '




In January 2003, FIN No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” was issued. This interpretation
requires a company to consolidate variable interest entities (“VIE”) if the enterprise is a primary beneficiary
(holds a majority of the variable interest) of the VIE and the VIE possesses specific characteristics. It also
requires additional disclosure for parties involved with VIEs. The provisions of FIN No. 46 are effective for

fiscal 2003. Since the Company does not have any unconsolidated VIEs, the adoption of FIN No. 46 will not
have an impact on its financial position or results of operations.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qua!itétive Disclosures About Market Risk

Our financial results are subject to risk from interest rate fluctuations on debt, which carries variable
Interest rates. As part of our overall strategy to manage the level of exposure to interest rate risk, in July 2001,
we entered into a three-year interest rate zero-cost collar, consisting of a cap with a strike of 10.5% and a floor
with a strike of 8.89%, on a notional amount of $150 million of our term loan. Variable rate debt outstanding
under our term loan was $217.3 million on February 1, 2003. As of February 1, 2003, the weighted average
interest rate in effect on all borrowings under our term loan, including the impact of the zero-cost collar on
$150 million of our term loan, was 7.7%. A 1% change in interest rates applied to the $67.3 million balance of
floating-rate term loan debt would affect pre-tax annual results of operations by approximately $0.7 million.
We also have $200 million of Senior Subordinated Notes outstanding on February 1, 2603, which bear interest

payable semi-annually at a fixed rate of 8.75%, and are therefore not subject to risk from interest rate
ﬂuctuatmns |

The principal objective of our investment management activities is to maintain acceptable levels of interest

rate and liquidity risk to facilitate our funding needs. As part of our risk management, we may use additional
derivative financial products such as interest rate hedges and interest rate swaps in the future.
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Item 8. Consolidated Financial Statements

Pathmark Stores, Inc.

Consolidated Statemnents of Operations
{in millions, except per share data)

Predecessor
Successor Company Company .
52 Weelss - 52 Weeks 20 Weeks 33 Weeks
- Ended Ended Ended Ended
February 1, February 2, February 3, September 16,
: 2003 2002 2001 2000
Sales ............ OSSO FTRRPRRON $3,937.7  $3,963.3  §1,493.7 $2,348.2
Cost of 200ds S01d.....c..eoviriiniiiinieie e (2,816.7) (2,855.6) (1,072.6) (1,688.5)
Gross profit ............... st seadsaas et bt ne 1,121.0 1,107.7 421.1 659.7
Selling, general and administrative eXpenses................... (944.4) (920.4) (339.3) (549.7)
Depreciation and amortization .........c.ccccveererierieninneesinnns (84.6) (76.7) (25.8) (48.0)
Reorganization income (expense), Net..oovrvrren, e — _ 7.4 0.9)
Amortization of goodwill.......c..cccoeciininicnninnin, — (265.5) (98.5) —
Operating earnings (I08S) ........ovevvvrvmreerrrereerserereesrseens 92.0 (154.9) (35.1) 61.1
Interest EXPENSE, MEL.ccurriirrireererrerierrreirensreeesrnrrnssseasees e (65.1) 65.3) - (27.7) (99.1)
Earnings (loss) before income taxes, extraordinary ' ' ‘
items and cumuiative effect of an accounting change ... 26.9 (220.2} (62.8) (38.0)
INCome tax ProVISION.....cccevvierrirerirrenieeere s (13.0) (18.5) . (147 (0.1)
Earnings (loss) before extraordinary items and ‘ A :
cumulative effect of an accounting change.................... 139 (238.7) (77.5) (38.1)
Extraordinary items, net of taX.......c.ocvvvrvrecreenecnnieieennns —_— 1 (3.3). — 313.7

Earnings (loss) before cumulative effect of ' ‘ v
~ an accounting change........vvn s 13.9 (242.0) (77.5) 275.6
Cumulative effect of an accounting change, net of tax

..... - (0.6) — — —
Net eamings (1088) .ooveeeverirvncinrereeneieese e ceetes 133 (242.0) (77.5) 275.6
Less: noncash preferred stock accretion and .
dividend reqUIrEMENts .....c.oervervreeereeeereeiiieeineee e — — — (14.5)
Net earnings (loss) attributable to common stock............. $ 133 § (2420  § (715 $ 261.1
Weighted average number of shares outstanding
= DASIC et ir et et 30.1 300 - 30.0
Weighted average number of shares outstanding : .
—diluted............... et e, 304 30.0 30.0
Net earnings (loss) per share — basic and diluted '
Earnings (loss) before extraordinary item and ‘ : .
cumulative effect of an accounting change............ e $ 046. 3 (7.96) $ (2.58)
Extraordinary item, net of tax..............ccoeveiveviiinnenn. o ‘ — 0.11) —
Cumulative effect of an accounting change, net of tax.... (0.02) — —
Net earnings (1088)..ccvvecerivniineeiiiieeeceec e, § 044 § (867 $§ (2.58

See notes to consolidated firiancial statements.
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Pathmark Stores, Inc., |
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in millions, except share and per share amounts)

February 2,

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ................... e $1,522.6

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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February 1,
2003 2002
ASSETS
Current Assets .
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENES ..........coooeviviiveeeicereereeeee e, [T — $ 113 $ 246
Accounts 1eceivable, NEt ... ..o s e 21.8 219
‘Merchandise INVENTOTIES ...c..evveereevvirceiceiiee e e 184.1 185.7
Due. from suppliers oo et b et as et 77.8 69.2
Other CUTENt @SSELS....vevvrreeseerenrenrerieneireeserreaearenris et e 32.2 41.5
Total current assets........icoveeviienineeceriieiise e e e 327.2 342.9
Property and equipment, net ............ et e 604.5 . 5724
GOOdWilL, et vt 434.0 434.0
" Other noncurrent assets.......c.c...... e et sh et e et e bt r e b eer et sreebenan s 156.9 146.2
Total BSSELS..ovvevvrrvverrrirnnernnes e e e $1,522.6 $1,495.5
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities ‘
ACCOUNES PAYADBIE.....ovv.cvvveoeseeccseees s ossass e sssss e sasnssses $ 922 $ 942
Current maturities of long-term debt ...........c.coovvcnen. 12.3 79 .
Current portion of lease obligations........... U PP e 18.3 18.3
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities ................ [T 144.5 152.6
* Total current Habilities .....ovvv.vvereeervcorisrerrnnerinseanne FOSTSOTROTTS 267.3 273.0
Long-termdebt.......cccoovvviniiiciiiniinn, e e e e 4394 440.6
Long-term lease 0bligations...c...ceverveeereiineicieieneee et [T 182.9 172.8
Deferred income taxes ......cccceveveeevcrireinnienne et ‘ 89.3 92.8
Other noncurrent Habilities ......ccocvveieiineici et 186.9 171.9
Stockholders’ equity
Preferred StOCK ..o e e e — —
Authorized: 5,000,000 shares; no shares issued .
Common stock $0.01 par Value ..o, 3 0.3 0.3
Authorized: 100,000,000 shares; issued: 30,099,510 sharps
at February 1, 2003 and at February 2, 2002 \
Common StOCK WAITANLS .......ccovucvvseeiviicrencriecenans N ereeereeeteeeneinn] e 60.0 60.0
Paid-in capital .......cccoovvrncniceiiiine s e ereeesneresasessnentsresaenis 607.9 607.0
Accumulated defiCit.. oo e e s - (306.2) (319.5)
Accumulated other comprehensive 1SS ....oovveiiecenensincnennenn e ‘ 4.5 22
Treasury stock, at cost: 28,318 shares at February 1, 2003 and v
45,303 shares at February 2, 2002 ...t 0.7) (1.2)
Total Stockholders” EQUILY .....oueiireiiniciinion ettt terescesesenessassrssensnass 356.8 344.4

$1,495.5




Pathmark Stores, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
{in millions)

Predecessor
Successor Company Company
" 52 Weeks 52 Weeks 20 Weeks 33 Weeks
Ended Ended Ended Ended
February 1, February 2, Februvary 3, Sepizmber 16,
2003 2002 2001 2000
Operating Activities ‘
Net earnings (I085).......cvevveerimircrmmmiiiniisicssren st sssersens $ 133 § (242.0) $ (773 $ 2756
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings (loss) to net cash :
provided by operating activities: _ ‘
Depreciation and amortization.................c..... 84.6 76.7 25.8 48.0
Amortization of deferred financing costs.... 1.8 o 23 0.9 2.6
Amortization of goodwill.........cocoverviccin — 265.5 98.5 —
Deferred inCome tax ProVision .......c.ccocoeeviriireiiiererniiniee e 6.0 ) 14.1 142 —
Tax benefit related to stock-based compensanon ...................................... 1.1 - — ; —
Gain on sale of real estate........cccooecenviccinnenennnne. evenes — _ — (1.8)
‘Cumulative effect of an accountmg change.... 0.6 — _ —_
EXtraordinary IitemsS ...c....ccoocmishinrriececritineiricn i —_ 3.3 — (313.7)
Cash provided by (used for) operating assets and liabilities: - ‘ -
ACCOUNLS TECEIVADIE ...ttt 0.1 (3.4) : 0.6) 2.1
Merchandise INVENIOTIES. ....c...verrierevrseeenscstese e seesssesaessssaesssnsesserans 1.6 9.5 . 2.5 (57
DUE fTOm SUPPHETS.....cirerreiriiite e (8.6) 10.7) — 0.1
Cther current assets......... 3.8 a9 7.6 - (0.9
Other noncurrent assets.. (11.3) (10.5) 3.5) (13.4)
Accounts payable............... 2.0 147 22.2) 12.2
Accrued interest payable ... 6.1 4.1 6.5 519
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities ...... (5.6) - 0.5 4.6) 4.4
10117 OO OO DT ST TROOTOIROON 0.5 (6.4) a7 (31.1)
Cash provided by operating activities..........ccovevemciniininnninionn, 92.0 82.6 3%.9 26.1
Investing Activities : )
Property and equipment expendltures ............................................................ (92.6) (116.5) (22.5) (25.3)
Lease fINanCINES ..ottt (12.7) — —_ —_
Proceeds from disposition of property and equipment — o : 2.6 9.8
Cash used for investing activities. ...l S (105.3) (116.5) ‘ (19.9) (15.5) .
Financing Activities \ B
Decrease in capital lease obligations..........ccoovccneciiniiiiicnienas (14.0) (14.8) (6.0) (11.6)
Borrowings under lease financings...........cc.ococeovicciceiiciiiencnnnrccie 12.7 —_ —_ —
Borrowing (repayment) under the working capital facility ................ PR - 10.0 : — — (109.8)
Repayment of other debt...........c.ccoooiiiiiiniie e 9.1 1.2) 0.5) (1.5)
Increase in other debt .......... 3.0 0.7 02 0.6
Deferred financing costs......... 2.2) 6.2) —_ (12.8)
Repayment of the term 10an.........ococoooiiiiii e ©.7D (203.4) ) (3.6) (241.4)
Proceeds from exercise of StOCK OPHONS .........ccovvveeieiiinicceeeccecneeis 0.3 —_ _— —
Borrowing under the senior subordinated notes ..o, — 200.0 — 4250
PUrchase of treasury SIOCK ......c.ovivvieeveevensssesienseeissesssnssiesssnssnssessessssnssnnsnssnns — (1.2) . — —
Borrowing under the DIP facility ... — — —_ 28.5
Repayment of the DIP facility ..........ccoevvinnniecnned TR — —_ o — (28.5)
Expenses related to issuance of common stock and warrants .................cc.... — — L — 0.8)
Cash provided by (used for) financing activities...........oveeiiicvnienes — (26.1) 9.9 47.7
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents............... : C(13.3) (60.0) 10.1 . 58.3
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 24.6 84.6 74.5 16.2
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period.........c..ccooveviiviiiiiieiin, $ 113 $ 246 $ 846 $ 745
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information
INEEIESE PAIA 1overreses sttt $ 573 $§ 693 $§ 218 $ 449
Income taxes Paid........c.iciviviierercnii i $ 4.1 $ 1.0 $ 0.1 $ 0.1
Noncash Investing and-Financing Activities . ' : :
Capital 1ease OBIIZAIONS ....cvvreeiueerireiegeecrercrnieiin e cerencnnescenseneasinssaesssenen $ 158 $ 140 3 1.9 3 17.2
Issuance of restricted common slock ...................................... $ — $ — 3 1.2 $ —
Cancellation of bond indebtedness.........cco.ocvceiriveercvieeirnce e $ — $ — $ — $ 1,034.6
Issuance of common stock and Warrants.........c.cc.vveeeieninennisssnnnnas $ — $ — $ — $  666.9

. See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Predecessor Company
Balance, January 29, 2000........
Net earnings........ccccevvccvecreccnnnns

Noncash accretion and accrued
dividends on exchangeable .
preferred stock ...,

Amortization of restricted
common stocK.......coeeeieiviennene

Exchange of exchangeable
preferred stock for cash...........

Subtotal......cceeviiiviiees

Eliminate stockholders’
deficiency of Predecessor

Issuance of common stock and

Pathmark Stores, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity (Deficiency)

(in millions)

warrants, net of expenses........

Balance, Septembér 16, 2000....

Successor Company :
Balance, September 16, 2000....
Net loss '

Amortization of restricted
€OmMON StOCK .......occrnrrenceninnne

Balance, February 3, 2001 ........
Net10SS cuvvvveiviiierice e
-Unrealized loss on cash-flow

hedge, netof tax........ccoeevnenen. .

Total comprehensive loss..........
Purchase of treasury stock ........

Amortization of restricted
COMMON StOCK ..vvevveveiveriiiireees

Balance, February 2, 2002.........
Net earnings.......oo.cveecvereecsnns

Unrealized loss on cash-flow
hedge, net of tax.......cccoceennne

Minimum pension liability,

Net Of tAX ..o
Total comprehensive loss..........
Exercise of stock options..........

Tax benefit related to
stock-based compensation.......

Balance, February 1, 2003 ........

Unamortized
. Accumulated Value of Total
Common Other Restricted Stockholders’
Preferred Common Stock . Paid-in Accumulated Comprehensive  Treasury Common Equity
Stock Stock Warrants Capital Deficit - Loss Stock Stock (Deficiency)
$— §— $ —  $1937 $(1,6257) $ — § — $(2.4) $(1,434.4)
S — — — 275.6 — — — 275.6
- = — (1.0 (4.3) — — — (5.3)
—_ —_— _ — _— -_— _— 0.3 0.3
— = — 111.6 129.1 — _ — 240.7
S — — 3043 (1,225.3) — — @1 (923.1)
- = —  (043) 1,253 — _ 2.1 923.1
0.3 60.0 605.8 — . _ _ — 666.1
8§ — 503 $60.0 $ 6058 8§ —_ $ — § — S — $ 666.1
$— $03 8600 © 56058 $ — 0§ §_ 5 — 5 666.1
- — — (77.5) — —_ — (77.5)
- = — 1.2 — — — (1.2) —
_— —_ - —_— —_ — 0.4 04
— 03 60.0 607.0 (77.5) — — (0.8) 589.0
— = — — T enoy = — — (2420) -
- - — — — Q2 — — (2.2)
_. — — (242.0) (2.2) — — (244.2)
— = — — T — (12) — (1.2)
— — — —_ —_ _ 0.8 - 0.8~
— 03 60.0 607.0 (319.5) (2.2) (1.2) — 344.4
_— _ _ _ 133 —_ — — 133
I — — — — s — — (1.5)
- — — — (0.8) — — (0.8)
_— —_ —_ — . 133 . (2.3) — — 11.0
- — — (0.2) — — 0.5 —_ 03
—_ - — 1.1 — — — —_ 1.1
$— 503 $600 $6079 § (3062) $(45)  $(0.7) $ — $ 3568

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Pathmark Stores, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financizl Statememnts

Note 1. Plan of Reorganization

Pathmark Stores, Inc. (the “Company” or “Pathmark™) completed its plan of reorganization (the “Plan of
Reorganization™) and formally exited Chapter 11 on September 19, 2000 (the “Plan Effective Date”). Pursuant
to the Plan of Reorganization, the Company’s direct and indirect parent companies merged with the Company,
which became the surviving entity. Such mergers are being accounted for in the historical financial statements
at historical cost in a manner similar to pooling-of-interests accounting.

The Company adopted fresh-start reporting in accordance with American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants Statement of Position 90-7, “Financial Reporting by Entities in Reorganization Under the

 Bankruptcy Code” (“Fresh-Start Reporting”). In connection with the adoption of Fresh-Start Reporting, a new

entity was deemed created for financial reporting purposes. The periods presented prior to the Plan Effective
Date have been designed “Predecessor Company” and the periods subsequent to the Plan Effective Date have
been designated “Successor Company” with September 16, 2000, the Saturday nearest the Plan Effective Date,
utilized for the accounting closing date related to the Predecessor Company financial statements. As a result of

- the implementation of Fresh-Start Reporting and the substantial debt reduction from the completion of the Plan
of Reorganization, the results of operations of the Predecessor Company and Successor Company are not
comparable.

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies

Business. The Company operated 144 supermarkets as of }Febfuary 1, 2003, primarily in the New York-
New Jersey and Philadelphia metropolitan areas.

Principles of Consolidation, The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company
and its subsidiaries, all of which are 100% owned. All intercompany transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation. The Company owns 33'/;% of the common stock of Restoration ‘Supermarket Corporation
(“RSC”) and Community Supermarket Corporation (“CSC”). RSC and CSC are each tenants under a lease for
a supermarket, in Brooklyn, NY and Newark, NJ, respectively. Both RSC and CSC have retained the
Company to manage its respective supermarket facility for a management fee. Each supermarket is operated
under the Pathmark name pursuant to a license. The Company alsc owns a 50% interest in a joint venture
~ which owns real property and has leased a supermarket to the Company. All of the above investments, which

~ are not material to the Company’s consolidated financial statements, are accounted for under the equity
method. No debt incurred by any of these entities is recourse to the Company as of February 1, 2003.

Segment Reportmg The Company has one reportable retail grocery segment, operates in one geographxcal
area in the United States, and has N0 Major customers represemmg 10% or more of sales.

Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions.
These estimates affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications. Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior years’ consolidated financial
statements to conform to the fiscal 2002 presentation.

Fiscal Year. The Company adopted the Predecessor Company’s fiscal year, which ends on the: Saturday
nearest to January 31 of the following calendar year. The Successor Company’s fiscal 2002 consisted of the
52-week period ended February 1, 2003, fiscal 2001 consisted of the 52-week pericd ended February 2, 2002
and fiscal 2000 consisted of the 20-week period from September 17, 2000 through February 3, 2001. The
Predecessor Company’s fiscal 2000 consisted of the 33-week period from January 30, 2000 to September ‘16,
2000, the Saturday nearest the Plan Effective Date. Normally, each fiscal year consists of 52 weeks, but every
five or six years the fiscal year consists of 53 weeks.

30




Pathmark Steres, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies — (Continued) |

Cumulative Effect of An Accounting Change. The Company adopted, as of the beginning of fiscal 2002,
Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 02-16, “Accounting by a Customer (Including a Reseller) for
Certain Consideration Received from a Vendor”. It has been the Company’s accounting policy to record vendor

allowances and rebates as a reduction of cost of goods sold when both the required contractual terms are
completed and the inventory is sold. It was also the Company’s accounting policy to recognize vendor payments
for the reimbursement of the Company’s advertising costs as a reduction of advertising expense when the
required advertising is performed. In adopting EITF Issue No. 02-16, the Company recorded vendor payments
related to advertising reimbursements as a reduction of cost of goods sold when both the required advertising is
performed and the inventory is sold. As a result, the Company recorded a charge of $0.6 million, net of an
income tax benefit of $0.4 million, for-the cumulative effect of an accounting change, as of the beginning of
fiscal 2002. In-addition, as a result of EITF Issue No. 02-16, vendor payments of $17.7 million in fiscal 2002
related to advertising reimbursements, previously classified as a reduction of selling, general and administrative
expenses, were reclassified as a reduction of cost of goods sold. Prior year financial statements were not
reclassified. Excluding the charge for the cumulative effect of this accounting change, the impact of EITF Issue
No. 02-16 on the Company’s net earnings for fiscal 2002 was not significant.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and temporary investments with
maturities of three months or less when purchased.

Merchandise Inventories. Merchandise inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost for
substantially all merchandise inventories is determined on a last-in, first-out (“LIFO”) basis. On the Plan
Effective Date, the Company recorded the Predecessor Company’s merchandise inventories at fair value.

Property and Equipment. Property and equipment are stated at cost, which includes the recording of the
Predecessor Company’s property and equipment at fair value as of the Plan Effective Date. Depreciation and

- amortization expense on owned property and equipment is computed on the straight-line method over the
following useful lives: buildings, 40 years; fixtures and equipment, 3 to 10 years; and leasehold improvements,
& to 15 years or lease term, whichever is shorter. Capital leases are recorded at the present value of minimum
lease payments or fair market value of the related property, whichever is less. Amortization of property under

capital leases is computed on the straight-line method over the term of the lease or the leased property’s
estimated useful life.

Long-Lived Assets. In August 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets,” which superseded SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for |
Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed of,” but retained many of its fundamental provisions. . In accordance with
SFAS No. 144, which the Company adopted effective with the beginning of fiscal 2002, the Company assesses
the carrying value of its long-lived assets for possible impairment based on an individual store basis to
determine if the carrying value of such assets are recoverable from their related undiscounted cash flows. If
the estimated future cash flows are less than the carrying value of the asset,.an impairment loss is recognized
based on the fair value of the asset less any cost of disposition. The Company did not record any impairment

losses in the 52 weeks ended February 1, 2003, the 52 weeks ended February 2, 2002, the 20 weeks ended
February 3, 2001 and the 33 weeks ended September 16, 2000.

Goodwill. Goodwill of §798.0 million, resulting from Fresh-Start Reporting, was being amortized over
three years. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, the Company’s
goodwill account is no longer being amortized subsequent to fiscal 2001 but rather is being evaluated for
impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the asset might be
impaired. The Company adopted SFAS No. 142 effective with the beginning of fiscal 2002. Based on an
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Pathmark Stores, Inc. ,
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ~ (Continued)

Note 2. Significant Accounting ]P@Eicﬁes — (Comntinued)

- independent evaluation of its fair value completed when SFAS No. 142 was adopted in the first quarter of fiscal
2002, the Company concluded that there was no impairment of its goodwill. The Company performed its
annual evaluation of its goodwill in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, and, based on an independent evaluation
of its fair value, concluded that there was no impairment of its goodwill.

The following table represents the pro forma effect of SFAS No. 142 on net eafnings (loss) and net
earnings (loss) per share — basic and diluted:

52 Weeks 52 Weeks 20 Weelks
Ended Ended Ended
(im millions, except per share daia) ' Feb;g;? L Feh;g;? = Feb;g;? >
Net earnings (108s), 88 r€POTTEA. ...ovevrieriirrreriei it $§ 133 $(242.0) $ (77.5)
Add back: amortization of goodWill .. ..o — 265.5 88.5
Net earnings (1088), Pro fOrMa.. . o....eveeereeerseeeeeersseeresessseeseneees e $ 133 $ 235 $ 21.0
Net earnings (loss) per share — basic, as reported...........c......... et $ 044 $ 8.07) § (2.58)
Less: amortization of goodwill ................ e eeere et e e et st e e bt eareaas = 8.85 3.28
Net earnings per share — basic, pro forma............... e e $0.44 $ 0.78 $§ 0.70
Weighted average number of shares outstanding — basic .........cccoceveneen. , 30.1 30.0 30.0
Net earnings (loss) per share — diluted, as reported .........ccoeevvvecvrierennene $ 044 $ (8.07) '3 (2.58)
Less: amortization of g0odWill .......ccccrevnervrenrinnirireensrinnicnenn. T — 8.84 3.27
. Net earnings per share — diluted, pro forma.........cooocciniiniiiniininee. $ 044 $ 077 § 0.69

Weighted average number of shares outstanding — diluted, pro forma..... 304 30.7 30.2 .

Software. Internally developed software, which creates a new system or adds identifiable functionality to
an existing system, and externally purchased software are capitalized and amortized on a straight-line method
. over 3 to 5 years; such amortization is classified in depreciation and amortization.

Unearned Vendor Allowances and Rebates. The Company receives vendor allowances and rebates under
vendor contracts which require-the Company to purchase the vendor’s product based on either a volume or
specified time period commitment or require the Company to perform a specific activity such as promote
and/or advertise the vendor’s product. When payment is received prior to fulfillment of the contractual terms,
our accounting policy is to record such amounts as unearned vendor allowances and rebates on our
consolidated balance sheet; such unearned vendor allowances and rebates are earned through a reduction in
cost of goods sold when the required contractual terms are completed and when the inventory is sold.
Noncurrent unearned vendor allowances and rebates are based on the amount projected to be eamed in the
periods subsequent to fiscal 2003.

Self-Insured Claims Liabilities. The Company is self insured for claims relating to customer, associate and
vehicle accidents, as well as associate medical and disability benefits, and maintains third-party excess
insurance coverage for such claims. It is the Company’s accounting policy to record a self-insured Hability, as
determined actuarially on a consistent basis, based on the facts and circumstances of each individual claim
filed and an estimate of claims incurred but not yet reported at a discounted risk-free interest rate. All claims
and their related liabilities are reviewed and monitored on an ongoing basis. - Any actuarial projection of losses
concerning such claims is subject to variability primarily due to external factors affecting future inflation rates,
litigation trends, benefit levels and claim settlement patterns. Such self-insured claims liabilities are recorded
at present value utilizing a 4% discount rate based on the projected payout of these claims_f ‘
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| Pathmark Steres, Inc.
- Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies — (Continued)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments. The fair value of the term loan as of February 1, 2003 and February

1, 2002 approximated ‘its carrying value due to its floating interest rates. The fair value of these publicly-
traded senior subordinated notes was based on the quoted market price at February 1, 2003 and an independent
evaluation at February 2, 2002 since these notes were not yet publicly traded. The Company has evaluated its
mortgages and industrial revenue bonds and believes, based on interest rates, related terms and maturities, that
the fair value of such instruments approximates their respective carrying amounts. As of February 1, 2003 and
February. 2, 2002, the carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, due from suppliers,
accounts payable, and accrued expenses and other current liabilities approximated their fair values due to the
 short-term maturities of these accounts. The fair value of the interest rate derivative is based on its market
value as determined by an independent party. However, considerable judgment is required in developing
estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the estimates presented in Note 12 are not necessarily indicative of the

amounts that the Company could settle in a current market exchange. The use of dlfferent market assumptions
or methodologies could affect the estimated fair value.

Income Taxes. The Company recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities based on differences between
the financial reporting and tax basis of assets and liabilities, applying enacted statutory rates in effect for the
year in which differences are expected to reverse. The effect on deferred taxes for a change in tax rates is
recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. The Company provides a valuation

allowance against deferred tax assets for which it does not consider the realization of such assets to be more
likely than not.

Revenue Recognition. Revenue is recognized at the point of sale to the customer. Discounts provided to
customers through Pathmark coupons are recorded as a reduction of sales.”

Cost of Goods Sold. Cost of goods sold includes the costs of inventory sold and the related purchase and
distribution costs.  Vendor allowances and rebates are adjusted through a reduction in cost of goods sold when
the required contractual terms are completed and when the inventory is sold. Cost of goods scld excludes
depreciation and amortization shown separately in the consolidated statements of operations. As a result of
EITF Issue No. 02-16, vendor payments of $17.7 million in fiscal 2002 related to advertising reimbursements,
previously classified as a reduction of selling, general and administrative expenses, were reclassified as a
reduction of cost of goods sold. Prior year financial statements were not reclassified.

Advertising Costs. Advertising costs, included in selling, general and administrative expenses, are
expensed as incurred and were $41.0 million for the 52 weeks ended February 1, 2003, $24.2 million for the
52 weeks ended February 2, 2002, $8.7 million for the 20 weeks ended February 3, 2001 and $12.8 million for
the 33 weeks ended September 16, 2000. As a result of EITF Issue No. 02-16, vendor payments of $17.7
million in fiscal 2002 related to advertising reimbursements, previously classified as a reduction of selling,

general and administrative expenses, were reclassified as a reduction of cost of goods sold. Prior year
financial statements were not reclassified.

Store Preopening and Closing Costs. Store preopening costs are expensed as incurred. The Company
records a liability for store closing costs such as future rent and real estate taxes, net of expected sublease
recovery, from the date of closuré discounted using a risk-adjusted rate of interest.

Stock-Based Compensation. The Company adopted the FASB’s SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure”, which amends SFAS No. 123 “Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation”. SFAS No. 148 provides alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the
fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation plans; however, it also allows
an entity to continue to measure compensation expense for those plans using the intrinsic value based method
of accounting prescribed by Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock
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Issued to Employees”. Under the fair value method, compensation cost is measured at the grant date based on

the value of the award and is recognized over the service period, which is usually the vesting period. Under

the intrinsic value based method, compensation expense is the excess, if any, of the quoted market price of the

stock at the grant date or other measurement date over the amount an employee must pay to acquire the stock.

The Company has-elected to account for its stock-based employee compensation plans under APB Opinion

No. 25 with pro forma disclosures of net earnings and eamlngs per share, as nf the fair value based method of
accounting defined in SFAS No. 123 had been applied.

The pro forma disclosure of net eamings (loss) and net earnings {loss) per share as if the fair value based
method of accountmg defined in the SFAS No. 123 had been applied is as follows:

32 Weeks 52 Weeks 20 Weeks
Ended . Ended Ended
s . February 1, February 2, February 3,
(in millions, except per share data) ‘ 2003 2002 2001
Net earnings (10ss) , 85 1€POTLEd....vvrvevireeierieetccre e reeaene, e $ 133 $(242.0) $ (77.5)
Less: stock-based compensation eéxpense, net of related tax effect ...... 432.4) (2.7 0.4)
Net earnings (loss), pro FOTTMI. e eervrereeereseesesseesesse s e $ 109 $(244.7) $ (77.9)
Net earnings (loss) per share — basic, as reported.........ccocveivirerncnnecns $ 044 $ (8.07) $(2.58)
Less: stock-based compensation expense, net of related tax effect ...... - (0.08) (0.09) (0.02)
Net earnings (loss) per share — basic, pro forma.........ccccovviirnrienenee $ 036 $ (8.16) $ (2.60)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding — basic ..........cccceeu.e o301 30.0 30.0
Net earnings (loss) per share — diluted, as reported ..........cooovvvirneins $ 044 $ (8.07) - § (2.58)
Less: stock-based compensation expense, net of related tax effect ...... (0.08) (0.09) (6.02)
Net earnings (loss) per share — diluted, pro forma......cccooicereeeecennn $ 036  $(8.16) $ (2.60)
‘Weighted average number of shares outstanding — diluted ................ - 304 30.0 30.0

For purposes of the pro forma disclosures, the estimated falr value of the options issued is assumed to be
expensed over the options’ vesting period. ' :

Shares Outstanding. The weighted average number of shares outstanding — basic were 30.1 million shares
for fiscal 2002 and 30.0 million shares for fiscal 2001 and for the 20 weeks ended February 3, 2001. The
weighted average number of shares outstanding — diluted were 30.4 million shares for fiscal 2002 and 30.0
million shares for fiscal 2001 and for the 20 weeks ended February .3, 2001. For fiscal 2001 and for the 20
weeks ended February 3, 2001, all stock options, warrants and restricted stock were excluded from the
computation of weighted average number of shares outstanding — diluted because their effect would have been

anti-dilutive. Data is not presented for the Predecessor Company due to the significant change in our capital
structure.

Derivative and Hedging Activities. 1In accordance with SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities”, as amended, the Company formally documents all relationships between
hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objectives and strategies for
undertaking various hedging transactions. The Company also assesses, both at the inception of the hedge and
on an on-going basis, whether the ‘derivative designated as a hedge is highly effective in offsetting changes in
fair value of the item being hedged. Should it be determined that a derivative is not highly effective as a
hedge, the Company will discontinue hedge accounting prospectively. To manage its interest rate risk, in July
2001, the Company entered into a three-year interest rate zero-cost collar, on a notional amount of $150
million of the Company’s term loan. This derivative is recorded on the balance sheet at fair value and at
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inception was designated, and continues to qualify, as a cash-flow hedge of the Company’s forecasted variable
interest rate payments. The related unrealized loss on this cash-flow hedge, net of tax, is included in
accumulated other comprehensive loss in stockholders’ equity on the consolidated balance sheets (see Note 13).

Minimum Pension Liability. The Company maintains several unfunded pension plans for certain current and
retired executives. The minimum pension liability for these plans is recorded in other noncurrent liabilities and

the related unrealized loss, net of tax, is included in accumulated other comprehensive loss in stockholders’
equity on the consolidated balance sheets.

New Accounting Pronouncements. ‘In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset
Retirement Obligations,” which addresses financial accounting and reporting for obligations associated with the
retirement of tangible long-lived assets and the associated asset retirement costs. SFAS No. 143 requires that
- asset retirement costs be capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the long-lived asset and depreciated over
the useful life of the related asset. The provisions of SFAS No. 143 are required to be adopted effective with the

beginning of fiscal 2003. The Company believes that the adoptlon of SFAS No. 143 will not have an impact on
its financial position or results of operations.

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements 4, 44 and 64, Amendment
of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections.” SFAS No. 145, among other things, rescinds the
provisions of SFAS No. 4 that requires companies to classify certain gains and losses from debt
extinguishments as extraordinary items and amends the provisions of SFAS No. 13 to require that certain lease
modifications be treated as sale-leaseback transactions. The provisions of SFAS No. 145 related to
classification of debt extinguishments are effective with the beginning of fiscal 2003. The Company will
adopt SFAS No. 145 in fiscal 2003 by applying Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 30 to all
gains and losses related to extinguishment of debt. Gains and losses from extinguishment of debt will be
classified within income from operations; upon adoption, prior year extraordinary items will be reclassified
within income from operations. The provisions of SFAS No. 145 related to lease modification are effective

for transactions occurring after May 15, 2002 and did not have an impact on the Company’s financial position
or results of operations.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for. Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities”, which addresses financial accounting and reporting for cost asscciated with exit or disposal
activities and' nullifies EITF Issue No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination
Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring).” SFAS No.
146 requires that a liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity be recognized when the
liability is incurred rather than at the exit plan commitment date. The provisions of SFAS No. 146 are
effective for exit or disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002. The Company believes that the
adoption of SFAS No. 146 will not have a significant impact on its financial position or results of operations.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation (“FIN”) No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others.” FIN No. 45
elaborates on the existing disclosure requirements for most guarantees, including loan guarantees such as standby
letters of credit. It also clarifies that at the time a company issues a guarantee, the company must recognize an
initial liability for the fair value, or market value, of the obligation it assumes under the guarantee and must
disclose that information in its interim and annual financial statements. The provisions related to recognizing a
liability at inception of the guarantee for the fair value of the guarantor’s obligations do not apply to guarantees
accounted for as derivatives. The initial recognition and measurement provisions apply on a prospective basis tc
guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002. The disclosure provisions are effective for fiscal 2002
(see Note 25). The Company does not expect adopting the initial recognition and measurement provisions of this
interpretation will have a material impact on its financial position or results of operations.
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In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation —
Transition and Disclosure”, which amends SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” to
provide alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based method of accounting for
stock-based employee compensation. In addition, SFAS No. 148 amends the disclosure requirements of SFAS
No. 123 and APB Opinion No. 28, “Interim Financial Reporting,” to require prominent disclosures in both
annual and interim financial statements about the method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation
. and the effect of the method used on reported results. The Company continues to apply APB Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” and has adopted the amendments to SFAS No. 123 required in
SFAS No. 148 for fiscal 2002 year-end reporting. The Company will adopt the amendment to APB Cpinion No.
28 required in SFAS No. 148 for quarterly reporting in the first quarter of fiscal 2003.

‘In January 2003, FIN No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” was issued. This interpretation
requires a company to consolidate variable interest entities (“VIE”) if the enterprise is a primary beneficiary
(holds a majority of the variable interest) of the VIE and the VIE possesses specific characteristics. It also
requires additional disclosure for parties involved with VIEs. The provisions of FIN No. 46 are effective for

fiscal 2003. Since the Company does not have any unconsolidated VIEs, the adoption of FIN No. 46 will not
have an impact on its financial position or results of operations.

Note 3. Cash and Cash Equivaﬁems

Cash and cash equivalents are comprised of the following {in millions): .
. ’ February 1, February 2,

2003 2002
CASN e § 113 $ 11.7.
CaSh EQUIVALENLS ....voerveeereeeeeees oo eeeseeseeeseees e ettt o — 12.9
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENLS.........c.ccveiiiiiiieieccee et re e sresr e § 113 $ 24.6

Note 4. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are comprised of the following (in millions):

February 1, February 2,
2003 2002

PreSCriPtion PLANS ....ovcveveviectieeieiecee ettt ettt ettt s eneneaseens % 1938 $ 196
OhET oo et s s see 2.7 3.0
ACCOUNTS TECEIVADIE ....viiviictiiiee ettt e et ete s et b stsstesbarere 22.5 22.6
Less: allowance for doubtful 8cCOUNtS...........ocovivviiiiiierir e e, 0.7) (0.7

................................................................................................ $ 21.8 $ 219

Note 5. Merchandise Inventories

Merchandise inventories are comprised of the following (in millions):

February 1, February 2,
2003 2002

e e e $1845  $1877
LS8! LIFO TESEIVE ...ttt (0.4) (2.0)

........ . $185.7
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Note 6. Other Current Assets

Other current assets are comprised of the following (in millions):

February 1,
2003

February 2,
2002

Prepaid expenses :

Due from joint ventures 3.9
Supplies inventory

Construction loan receivable

Deferred income tax asset

$ 156
33
3.8
6.3
5.5
7.0

$ 415

Note 7. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are comprised of the following (in millions):

February 1, February 2, -
2003 2002
LBIA .cvcesrveverr vt snsse s e $ 317§ 317
Buildings and building improvements ....... e e veer e aaresrresreeres 102.4 96.4
Fixtures and equipment.........ccccoovvenncnniiennn, e . 184.7 145.7
Leasehold costs and improvements.................... s e 279.6 251.5
Property and equipment, OWNEd........ccceeruriiiniiniriiiree et 5984 525.3
Buildings and equipment under capital 1€ases ...........cooeueeeririrenineereneenrereee e, 153.7 136.1
Property and €qUIPMENt, A COSL.v.vuiuurtiiueriereinreeeeersesesesseesisetee b see s s e sseeseneas 752.1 664.4
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization (2)..........cocevreererreerrenrnceeniecereenes (147.6) (92.0)
Property and equipment, net ..........cocccocvenienn. ettt e e n b naas $ 604.5 $5724

(a) Includes accumulated amortization of buildings and equipment under capital leases of $23.6 million and $19.1

million as of February 1, 2003 and February 2, 2002, respectively.

Note 8. Goodwill

Goodwill is comprised of the following (in millions):

February 1, February 2,
2003 2002
GOOAWILL...vvveeereerrecererenseneecees e s $798.0  $798.0
Accumulated amortization ............e.eeeeerrerreereenn ettt (364.0) (364.0)
GoodWill, DIE...eeuriuererenerinereereraesreenenaens ettt ettt ne e et saeneeetende $ 434.0 $ 4340
Note 9. Other Noncurrent Assets
Other noncurrent assets are comprised of the following (in millions):
February 1, February 2,
2003 2002
Funded pension plan @SSetS........icirriinierecieciieeecceesee et eveees s en e ne $127.0 $116.2
Deferred ﬁnancing‘costs .......... ceere e S et rerrere e e rearesia—reeaeentaaaeann 14.1- 13.2
Capitalized software, net.........cocviiiiiiiiiiiciccc e e 14.0 11.8
OBRET .ot ettt e bt et e st eata e e b et aresntbenneraees 1.8 5.0
Other NONCUITENE ASSELS .....vvvvveererrerrerieesee, ettt RO $156.9 $146.2
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Note 10, Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities are comprised of the following (in milliohs):

February 1, February 2,
2003 - 2002
Payroll and payroll taXes......cccovvvecniciovincniincnicnen, etet et te e an st ae e eaees § 483 $ 523
Self-insured claims Habilities......ccvevrverinieieriiicieriie s eneb e eas 208 317
INEETEST ..ottt e e 12.5 6.4
Utilities and common area MAINtENANce .......c.ovvveeenee s e 10.5 1.3
Unearmed vendor allowances and rebates ...........coeuvververirenreinenanns et 9.9 10.1
Gift certificates............ et TSRO 7.6 6.9
0 1 OO et 34.9 33.9
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities.........c.ocoeunee. ceereeereseseaesbesnesanees $ 1445 $152.6
Note 11. Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt is comprised of the following (in millions):
] February 1, February 2,
‘ : , 2003 2062
TErM 10AMN ...ttt e teens ©$2173 $218.0
Working capital facility ........................................................................................ 10.0 —_
SENIOr SUDOTANALE TIGLES w..vvvvvvvevesveseversssseseereeeseseeesssesesessseeesesessesesssensenseesseen - 200.0 200.0
MOTEZAZES. - vverveerrioereeeseeseseesseessesesese s essseenssesssesesens ettt sae et et eaeas 21.8 22.2
Industrial revenue bonds ..........ccorvcriciiiiccnnn ettt e 1.6 8.0
OHET GEDt....ovuerieciririeeeec et seatsese sttt seses e 1.0 0.3
Total debt weuveeumerriereeerrirnrerins SRS e 4517 448.5
Less: current maturities and the working capital facility .........ccccoovvcrecvrcenneens— (12.3) 79
Long-term portion.............. e erte et aae st ren e Rt R e b e b e b se st estets s e re et e rearearenennan $4394 $ 440.6

Scheduled Maturities of Debt. The amount of principal payments required each fiscal year on outstanding

debt as of February 1, 2003 are as follows (in millions):

Principal
. . : Payments
2003, rrrvvenens et e eethet e teee e reeeaihesaaaeeeireeaebeeettbaeerarreeasearean $ 123
2004.....oooceereesianeetseesissiess s ssesbs b st SS S Ss st e b - 1.3
2005 e e OO 54.8
2006, .. SO v ———————— e e . 108.4
2007 et e ettt et ettt e it et et et e et b et et et b e entesentesatentres - 546
BN s (Y 11 G OO USRS 220.3
TOtAl ..o et v, s $451.7

' Senior Subordinated Notes. On January 29, 2002, the Company issued $200 million aggregate principal

amount of unregistered 8.75% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2012 (the “Notes™), which pay cash interest on a
semi-annual basis, beginning on August 1, 2002. The proceeds from the issuance of the Notes were used to
repay a portion of the Company’s outstanding loans under its bank credit facility and to repay in the first
quarter of fiscal 2002 $6.4 million of the Company’s outstanding industrial revenue bonds. During the first
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quarter of fiscal 2002, the Company completed an exchange offer pursuant to- which all of the Notes were
exchanged for $200 million aggregate principal amount of the Company’s registered 8.75% Senior
Subordinated Notes due 2012 (the “Senior Subordinated Notes”). The Senior Subordinated Notes are
unconditionally guaranteed as to payment of principal and interest by the subsidiary guarantors and contain
customary covenants. The Senior Subordinated Notes restrict the ability of the Company to declare cash

dividends on its common stock. The Company 1s m compliance with all Senior Subordinated Notes covenants’
as of February 1, 2003.

Bank Credit Facility. On September 19, 2000, the Company entered into a credit agreement with a group of
lenders led by JPMorgan Chase Bank (the “Credit Agreement”). The Credit Agreement initially consisted of (a)
term loans in an aggregate principal amount of $425 million (consisting of $125 million in Term Loan A and
$300 million in Term Loan B) and (b) a $175 million revolving working capital facility (including 2 maximum of
$125 million in letters of credit). After giving effect to the prepayment of indebtedness with the proceeds of the

offering of the Senior Subordinated Notes, the Company had no indebtedness under Term Loan A and $218.0
million under Term Loan B.

The Credit Agreement requires the Company to meet certain financial tests including, without limitation, a
maximum total debt to consolidated EBITDA (leverage) ratio, a minimum consolidated interest and rental
expense coverage ratio, a minimum fixed charge ratio and a minimum consolidated EBITDA. In addition, the
Credit Agreement contains certain covenants which, among other things, places limits on the incurrence. of
additional indebtedness, issuance of cash-pay preferred stock, repurchase of Company stock, incurrence of liens,
sale-leaseback transactions, hedging activities, sale or discount of receivables, investments, loans, advances,
guarantees, transactions with affiliates, asset sales, acquisitions, capital expenditures, mergers and consolidations,
changing lines of business, prepayments of other indebtedness, amendments to the organizational documents and
other matters customarily restricted in such agreements. The Credit Agreement contains customary events of
default, mcluding without limitation, payment defaults, material breaches of representations and warranties,
material covenant defaults, certain events of bankruptcy and insolvency, and a change of control. In addition, the

Credit Agreement prohibits the payment of cash dividends. The ‘Company is in compliance with all covenants
in the Credit Agreement as of February 1, 2003.

On January 28, 2003, the Company amended its Credit Agreement. Pursuant to this amendment, among
other things, the maximum permitted leverage ratio has been increased through fiscal 2004, the minimum
consolidated interest and rental expense coverage ratio has been decreased through 2004, the minimum
permitted consolidated EBITDA has been decreased through fiscal 2004, and a minimum fixed-charge
coverage ratio covenant has been added. Additionally, the Company has agreed to (i) an increase in the
commitment fee on the revolver portion of the Credit Agreement of 25.0 basis points; and (ii) an increase in
the applicable interest rates payable on outstanding balances under the Credit Agreement of 50.0 basis points.

Borrowings under the Credit Agreement bear interest at floating rates equal to LIBOR, which was 1.3% as of
February 1, 2003, plus an applicable rate, subject to decrease, depending on the total debt to consolidated
EBITDA ratio. The Company is required to repay a portion of the borrowing under the term loan each year, so
as to retire such indebtedness in its entirety by July 15, 2007. The working capital facility expires on July 15,
2005. The weighted average interest rate in effect on all borrowings under the term loan was 7.7% during fiscal

2002. As of February 1, 2003, borrowings under the working capital facility were $10.0 million and outstanding
letters of credit were $40.3 million.

All of the obligations under the Credit Agreement are guaranteed by the Company’s 100% owned subsidiaries
that are not single-purpose entities organized for the purpose, and engaged solely in the business, of owning real
property. The obligations under the Credit Agreement and those of the subsidiaries guaranteeing the Credit
Agreement are secured by substantially all of the Company’s tangible and intangible assets including, without

limitation, intellectual property, real property, including leasehold interests, and the capital stock in each of these
subsidiaries.
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The indenture related to the Senior Subordinated Notes restricts and the Credit Agreement prohibits the
payment of cash dividends.

Industrial Revenue Bonds. Proceeds of $6.4 million from the issuance of the Senior Subordinated Notes
were used towards repayment of two industrial revenue bonds in the first quarter of fiscal 2002. The balance of
the industrial revenue bonds of $1.6 million after giving effect to the repayment will be payable in installments
ending fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2018 and have interest rates ranging from 5% to 7%.

Mortgages. Borrowings are payable in installments ending in fiscal 2008 with interest at 7.3%, and include a

scheduled final payment of $18.9 miilion. These mortgages are secured by property and equipment having a net
“book value of $21.8 million as of February 1, 2003.

Note 12.  Fair Value of mecxal Instruments

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Company’s financial instruments are as follows (in rmlhons)

February 1, 2003 February 2, 2002

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Amount Value Amount Value
TN LOBM ¢t ee e eeeereeee e seeeseeeeeae $217.3 $217.3 $218.0 $218.0
Working capital facility .....c.ccoceeriiievivenirinnnn e 10.0 10.0 —_— —_
Senior subordinated NOES .....oceeveivveeeiieieieiieiceenn 200.0 - 185.0 -200.0 205.5
MOTEZAZES. ..oovvveervvsesseesseeesessssessesne s seeessessssssesseesenseess 21.8 21.8 222 222
Industrial revenue bonds ..o 1.6 1.6 8.0 8.0
Other debt........coiiriiieiiic e, 1.0 - 1.0 0.3 0.3
Total debt v, bt $451.7  $436.7 $448.5  $454.0
Derivative Hability ...........ccoovorvvernnnne.. et $ 63 $ 63 ~ $§ 38 § 38

Note 13. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

As part of its overall strategy to manage the level of exposure to interest rate risk, in July 2001, the Company
entered into a three-year interest rate zero-cost collar, consisting of a cap with a strike of 10.5% and a floor with a
strike of 8.89%, on a notional amount of $150 millicn of its term loan. At inception, the derivative was
designated, and continues to qualify, as a perfectly-effective cash-flow hedge of the Company's forecasted
variable interest rate payments due on the term loan. The Company does not hold or issue derivative financial
instruments for speculative or trading purposes but rather to hedge against the risk of rising interest rates. This’
derivative is recorded on the balance sheet at its fair value of $6.3 million, included in other noncurrent liabilities,
with the related unrealized loss of $3.7 million, net of tax, recorded in stockholders’ equity and classified as
accumulated other comprehensive loss. The fair value of the derivative is based on its market value as
determined by an independent party. However, considerable judgment is required in developing estimates of
fair values. Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that the
Company could settle for in a current market exchange. The use of different market assumptions or
methodologies could affect the estimated fair value. The counterparty to this derivative transaction is a major
financial institution. The Company does not expect any accumulated other comprehensive loss related to our

derivative currently recorded in stockholders’ equity to be recognized in its statement of operations in fiscal
2003.
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Note 14. Compreheﬁsﬁve Earnings (Loss)

Comprehensive earnings (loss) is comprised of the following (in millions):

41

: Predecessor
Successor Company Company
52 Weeks 52 Weeks 20 Weeks 33 Weeks
Ended Ended Ended Ended
February 1, February 2, February 3, September 16,
) 2003 2002 © 2001 2000
Net earnings (10SS) .....cccoouiererivveiiveninnivinciiscsincennn - 3 133 $(242.00 § (77.5) §$275.6
Other comprehensive loss: - :
Unrealized loss on cash ﬂow hedge, net of tax........... (1.5) 2.2) J— —_
Minimum pension liability, net of taX..........ccooenennne. (0.8) — — —
-Comprehensive earnings (108S) ..........oerererervesrrnrinnnes $ 11.0  $(2442) $ (77.5) $275.6
Note 15. Interest Expense, Net
Interest expense, nef is comprised of the following (in millions):
. Predecessor
Successor Company Company
52 Weeks 52 Weeks . 20 Weeks 33 Weeks
Ended Ended Ended Ended
February 1, February 2, February 3, September 16,
2003 2002 2001 2000
Term loan....cccevmiecnccineneeeens e $ 168 § 332 § 1638 $§ 140
-Working capital facility .....cccocvveeenenirieciiie e 1.9 — —_ 6.0
Senior subordinated NOES ...........oo.vuvveererrreeneisesseesrenne. 17.4 02 — —
Lease obligations........coweevereevierenieirsseeessisaionsseeeeeenns 207 205 7.6 13.8
Amortization of deferred financing costs........coeevrenecanns 1.8 23 0.9 2.6
MOTEBABES. v eeeveeereerirenterreseesieseetsreesieeeessesnassresrensesseanns 1.6 1.7 0.6 1.1
DIP £aCilitY oovevvermreerseeersernnseseeeessensssesessensssannees S — — — 2.5
Other subordinated debt.........covecveeviivirieeiiecreiennceiiene — _ _— 53.8
INEETESE INCOME ....vvvecvereiereceiee et esess et saesnees - (0.2) (2.0 (1.5) 0.3)
OhET (oo e e re s e e eaee 5.1 9.4 3.3 5.6
Interest eXpense, NEt.....ccoiveecreveivesscrereeseeeveecrereeenerees $ 651 $ 653 $ 2717 $ 99.1
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Nete 16. Lease Obligations

As of February 1, 2003, the Company was liable under terms of noncancellable leases for the following
minimum lease commitments (in mllhons)

Capital Operating
) Leases Leases

2003 e v et et e r et enenren et § 364 - § 457
2004 ... sieeeeeieesee OO TSSO SOOI S 339 44.4
2005......... e eersrenrereat e r s an st st e e eres e s reReniebera et sbe s sesereeee s et e e saerasrererne 30.5 435
2006, bt e P TOUUOOOTPIPORUROIN - 255 40.3
2007 e ettt et e bbbt b stk e bkt ses e e senserebe s : 240 36.9
TRETEAMIET ...ttt 250.8 319.0
Total minimum lease payments (8) ...ooeevererienreniiee it S 401.1 $529.8
Less: amounts representing interest .................. e ettt ta e ae st (199.9)
Present value of net minimum capital lease payments (b} ............ccovcvevrrvennes s 201.2
Less: current portion of lease obligations et eee e s ettt e e (18.3)
Long-term lease obligations........c.ccviiiivviinniinnenne Lttt sre et eanenas .. 31829

(a) Net of sublease income of $57.8 million for operating leases.
(b) Includes $36.4 million related to sale and leaseback transactions accounted for as financings.

Rent expense, under all operating leases having noncancellable terms of more than one year, is summarized
~ as follows (in millions):

Predecessor

Successer Company Company

52 Weeks 32 Weeks 20 Weeks 33 Weeks
Ended Ended Ended Ended

February 1, February 2, February 3, September 16,
' _ 2003 2002 2001 2000

VIINIMUM FENLALS 1.veveviire v sesensesiinseeeene. 3 550 8§ 521 . § 175 $ 28.7

Less: rentals from subleases.........ouvveeceeremriecereeereeeninne. (112 (11.3) (3.9) 2.7
Minimum rentals, NEt.......cooeveieiiinicrierieie e, $ 438 $ 40.8 $ 13.6 $ 26.0

Note 17. Other Noncurrent Liabilities
" Other noncurrent liabilities are comprised of the following (in millions):
February 1, February 2,

2003 2002
- Unearned vendor allowances and reBates ......c.ovivveeicorvereireireree e ereeseeveser s § 548 $ 471
Self-insured claims liabilities .......ooveeieeiiiii ST 41.4 40.0
Unfunded pension plan benefits.......c.civveiviveriiniinicnceeeeens Cerrereareeena 24.1 _ 23.2
Other postretirement benefits.........everrveeecernnreerens et 195 - 17.8
Deferred 1Nt ..ot e e 11.1 ‘ 10.3
Derivative Hability c.vovvveeiiiiiiece e ettt e e e s RO _ 6.3 38
Other postemployment beneﬁts .............................................................................. .55 5.2
0 14 T3 OO U SR UUROUU DIt JURTRTTR 24.2 24.5
Other noncurrent Habilities ..o e e e ——— $186.9 $171.9
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Note 18. Pension and Other Benefit Plans

The following tables provide a reconciliation of the benefit obligations, the funded plan assets and the
funded status of the plans, accounted for on a calendar year basis, along with the amounts recognized in the
consolidated balance sheets and the actuarial assumptions (dotlars in millions):

Other
Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
- February 1, February 2, February 1, February 2,
2003 2002 2003 2002
Change in benefit obligations: ‘ : ‘
Benefit obligations at beginning of year................ e $1769  $1642 $ 247 $ 17.6
SETVICE COSE vvmrvrironrererienirerrrsersirsniasressasesssesesersssessesenns 3.0 3.0 0.6 0.4
Interest cost .............. SRR s 12.0 12.1 1.7 1.3
Plan amendment........ccceivmiinineienneiesionnerieisen e 0.6 — —_ 0.7
Benefits and expenses paid.......c.cccovurcnnennes ST N CN)) (7.5) 0.9 0.7
Actuarial experience 10SSes........covvrverivecininiinerinienas . 3.8 51 (2.4) 6.8
‘Benefit obligations at end ofyear ................ oo 5 188.6 $176.9 $ 237 $ 247
Change in fair value of funded plan assets: '
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year............. $240.5 $240.5 § — $ —
Actual return on plan assets.........couereeeereiiicnceriennns (16.2) 5.7 _ — —_
Benefits and eXpenses paid.......c.ievveeerrericeresiirenennnns : (5.9 6.7 — —
Fair value of plan assets at end of year..................... . $2184 $240.5 § — $ —
Reconciliation of funded status at end of year
FUNAEA STALUS .vvoorvverveer oo s eeneene $§ 2938 $ 635 $ Q37 $@247)
Unrecognized prior service cost eeeeeeserereeseesee e : 05 — (0.6) (0.6)
Unrecognized net actuarial 108Ses........cccveiveiirecrennennis 71.7 27.7 4.8 7.5
Prepaid (accrued) benefit cost ...........ocvnnvceieen. e $102.0 $ 91.2 $ (19.5) $ (17.8)
Amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheets:
Other noncurrent assets........c..ecvrveeerivennnes e $127.0 $116.2 § — § —
Accrued expenses and other current hiabilities............. 2.3) (1.8) C— —_
Other noncurrent liabilities .........c.oocvevvvicirnieiinininn, (24.1) (23.2) (19.5) (17.8)
Accumulated other comprehenswe 1SS .ovvrrvvvereoee 14 — — —
Net amount recognized .........co..oeceureeeerrnrenrrerirsnnes $1020 § 91.2 $(19.5 $(17.8)
Actuarial assumptions at the end of year:
Discounted 1ate.......ccoceeeverenererenersiiniennriressannnas 6.50% 7.25% - 6.50% 7.25%
Expected return on plan assets.........coccovvericererereennnns . 9.50% 9.50% — —
Rate of compensation increase ............ocuneieriesinnanee, 3.50% — —

4.25%

- As part of the Company’s on-going process to evaluate its actuarial assumptions, including its expected rate
of return, it is reducing its expected long-term rate of return from 9 50% to 9.00% in fiscal 2003 in response to

the current conditions in the securities markets.
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Note 18. Pension and Other Benefit Plans — (Continued)

Pension Plans. The Company maintains a defined benefit pension plan (the “Qualified Plan™), which
covers substantially all non-union and certain union associates. The Company also maintains an unfunded
supplemental retirement plan for participants in the defined benefit pension plan to provide benefits in excess
of amounts permitted to be paid under the provisions of the tax law. Additionally, the Company has entered
intc individual retirement agreements with certain current and retired executives providing for unfunded
supplemental pension benefits upon their retirement after attainment of age 60. The minimum pension liability
for these unfunded plans is recorded in other noncurrent liabilities and the related unrealized loss, net of tax, is
included in accumulated other comprehensive loss in stockholders’ equity on the consolidated balance sheets.

Pension benefits include the following cost (cost reduction) components (in millions):

Predecessor
Suceessor Company . Company
52 Weeks 52 Weeks - 20 Weeks 33 Weeks
Ended Ended Ended " Ended
February I,  February2, ~ February3, September 16,
o 2003 2002 2001 2000
SEIVICE COStauvriiiiiiiiiriiiiieeesitreesreeeesrereireens [T $ 30 $ 30 $ 10 S 20
INterest COSt. i erereeneresnennead et 12.0 12.1 4.0 7.8
ExXpected rEtUrn On aSSELS .......vvveuiremseesreesssrssesionesenneaan. (24.1) (24.0) 7% {(15.3).
Amortization of prior SErvICe COSt.......ccourerirererivrnrrinrennnns 0.1 — — 0.2
Recognition of (gains) 108ses ..., — 0.1 — (2.9)
Pension benefits cost reduction.............. e $ 90) - § (B8 § (29 $ (82)

Assets of the Company’s Qualified Plan are invested in equities of domestic corporations, U.S.
Government instruments and money market investments. The value of its Qualified Plan assets has decreased
from $240.5 million at December 31, 2001 to $218.4 million at December 31, 2002. The investment
performance returns and declining discount rates have reduced our overfunded Qualified Plan, net of benefit
obligations, from $91.5 million at December 31, 2001 toc $56.8 million at December 31, 2002.

The projected benefit obligation for the unfunded supplemental retirement plans was $27.0 million as of
February 1, 2003 and $28.0 million as of February 2, 2002. The accrued benefit cost for the unfunded

supplemental retirement plans was $26.4 million as of February 1, 2003 and $25.0 million as of February 2,
2002.

The Company also contributes to several multi-employer plans, which provide defined benefits to certain
union associates. The expenses related to these multi-employer plans were $18.1 million for the 52 weeks ended
February 1, 2003, $16.4 million for the 52 weeks ended February 2, 2002, $5.6 million for the 20 Weeks ended
February 3, 2001 and $9.3 million for the 33 weeks ended September 16, 2000.

The Company sponsors a savings plan for certain eligible associates. Contributions under the plan are based
on specified percentages of associate contributions. The expenses related to the savings plan were $2.2 million
for the 52 weeks ended February 1, 2003, $2.9 million for the 52 weeks ended February 2, 2002, $1.0 million for
the 20 weeks ended February 3, 2001 and $1.7 million for the 33 weeks ended September 16, 2000.

Other Postretirement Benefits. The Company provides its associates other postretirement benefits,

principally health care for non-union associates who retired prior to January 1, 1998 and certain associates for
whom benefits are a subject of collective bargaining and life insurance benefits.
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Other postretirement benefits include the following cost (cost reduction) components (in millions):

Predecessor
Successor Company Company
52 Weeks 52 Weeks 20 Weeks 33 Weeks
Ended * Ended Ended Ended
February 1, February 2, February 3, September 16,
_ o 2003 2002 2001 2000
SETVICE COSE ...uvuciiiiieiiecini it $ 06 § 04 $ 01 § 02
INterest COSt..vivevvmnnrirnrirnice e e 1.7 1.3 0.4 0.9
Amortization of prior SErvice cost..............ovuun.v.. e (0.1) 0.1) — (1.0)
Recognition of 108s (2aIN) .......iceverivevvirsieriieeceeerenns 0.4 —_— — (0.4)
Other postretirement benefits costs (cost reduction)....... $§ 2.6 $ 16 § 05 $ (0.3)

The health-care cost trend rate at February 1, 2003 was 10% and is expected to remain at this level. Al%

change in the assumed health care cost trend rate would have the following effects as of February 1, 2003 (in
millions): :

1%

Increase Decrease
Total of service and interest COSt COMPONENLS .......cceverrrvrrierrerireriesresirneeerreeensene § 03 § 03
Postretirement. benefit obligation...........coccevecirciniccnierinnen, et 3.4 2.7

Other Postemployment Benefits. The Company also provides its associates postemployment benefits,
primarily long-term disability and salary continuance. The obligation for these benefits was determined by
application of the provisions of the Company’s long-term disability plan and includes the age of active
claimants at disability and at valuation, the length of time on disability and the probability of the claimant
remaining on disability to maximum duration. These liabilities are recorded at their present value utilizing a
discount rate of 4%. At February 1, 2003 and February 2, 2002, the liability for accumulated postemployment.

benefits was $6.0 million and $5.9 million, respectively, of which $5.5 million and $5.2 million, respectively,
was classified in othér noncurrent liabilities.

Note 19, Income Taxes

The income tax provision before extraordinary items and cumulative effect of an accounting change, is
comprised of the following (in millions):

Predecessor
Successor Company Company
52 Weeks 52 Weeks 20 Weeks 33 Weeks
Ended Ended Ended Ended
February 1, February 2, February 3, September 16,
, 2003 2002 2001 2000
Current provision :
Federal .....ooomvivoreeeerrerereeens ettt s e es e ren e e $ 13 $ 3.1 $ 0.2 § —
State .o e 5.7 13 0.3 0.1
Deferred provision (benefit) :
Federal ....cooovovvviviiniied e e seeb et e s ete et e eaes 9.1 10.1 10.5 —_
AL ottt ettt ee et s erre e natseerenn (3.1 4.0 3.7 —_—
Income tax provision.............. erereere e st aeteas $ 130 - § 185 § 147 § 0.1
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v The income tax provision before extraordinary items and cumulative effect of an accounting change differs
from the expected federal statutory income tax provision (benefit) as follows (in millions):

Predecessor

. Successor Company Company

52 Weeks 52 Weeks 20 Weeks 33 Weeks
Ended Ended . Ended Ended

February 1, February 2, February 3, September 16,
: - 2003 2002 2001 2000

Federal income tax provision (benefit) at statutory tax rate... $§ 9.4 $ (7.1  §(22.0) $ (13.3)

STAte INCOME 1AKES ..evvvvnreeerercrrisesrs s essesasessessseenens R 19 3.4 2.6 (0.5)
Nondeductible amortization of goodwill .........c.ccooveviivinirirrnnns — 92.9 345 —_
Nondeductible reorganization €Xpenses ......cciverveerirerevreienees — — — 9.2
Change i1 VAIUAHON AIOWANCE .rvvrrerecieeeeresscenerresseserrene — — — 5.5

OTRET .vvnrireccrcnneie e essesae e e s arsasse st sess et eecnenenes . 1.7 0.7) (04 ~ (0.8)
Income tax provision.........ceoveeervreernsen ererte et eb et er e s st $ 13.0 $ 185 $ 147 $ 0.1

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities consist of the following (in millions):
February 1, 20@3 February 2, 2602

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Property and eqUIPMENT .....covoveeerivermiireinesesiereeseseesneseesaees $ — $135.5 $§ — $139.0
Benefit plans and other postretirement and : |
- postemployment benefits......c.coioevveicrirnccriiiiennas e _ - 27.3 — 23.1
- Merchandise inventory and gross profit.........eceeecrneeenene. —_ 27.1 — 270
Prepaid expenses.........covrereccreriiviinnnn et re b er et — 8.7 —_ 7.5
Net operating loss carryforwards ......ccoeovecnivveiennnerceinns 24.1° — 289 —
Self-insured claims Habilities .......o..eocereveverererrrrnsiereseesersienenen, - 225 — 25.7 —
Lease capitalization ..........cccceveececcvnennnn. et 234 — 229 —
Deferred INCOMIE ....oeiieiieiee e eieerrere e ers et eens 19.0 —_ 14.7 —_—
General buSiness Credits ...........veerrerrerreoreesrseereseeeeeesesseons e 149 — - 137 —
Alternate MINIMUM tAXES .vevveverieceereenveenns JRU SRS 7.5 I 4.5 —_—
OURET .o sssmsssssssess s sseses e 1.8 — 4.8 —

©SUBLOLAL oot R 1132 1986 115.2 196.6 !

Less: valuation allowance ..........ccoceoveveerereennennrrrerssnnee s 5.9) — (5.9 R
Total oo v SRR $107.3  $198.6  $109.3 $196.6

The Company’s net deferred income tax liability was $91.3 million and $87.3 million at February 1, 2003
and February 2, 2002, respectively, and included a valuation allowance of $5.9 million at both fiscal year ends
primarily related to net operating losses that may not be utilized in the carryforward period. As a result of the
exchange of the Predecessor Company’s subordinated debt and accrued .interest for the Successor Company’s
equity in fiscal 2001, the amount of the Company’s aggregate indebtedness was reduced, generating income
from the cancellation of debt for tax purposes of approximately $350 million.. Since the realization of such
income occurred under the U. S. Bankruptcy Code, the Company did not recognize income from cancellation
of debt for tax purposes, but has elected to reduce the basis of its depreciable property and, with the remaining
income from the cancellation of debt, reduce its tax loss carryforwards. The Company’s remaining federal tax
loss carryforwards expire from fiscal 2008 through fiscal 2020 and are subject to an annual limitation of
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approximately $38.6 million due to the change of control resulting from the Plan of Reorganization. General
business credits consist of federal work incentive credits and expire in fiscal 2008 through fiscal 2017. The

fiscal 2002 income tax provision 4include's a charge of $2.6 million to adjust the Company’s estimated liability
for certain tax issues.

The balance sheet classification of the deferred income tax assets and liabilities is as follows (in millions):

February 1, 2003 : ‘ February 2, 2002
Current Noncurrent Total Current  Noncurrent Total
ASSEtS ..ovvvvvereee e $ 403 $ 729 $1132 8§ 465 $ 687 §$1152
LAGBIHES wovervrcrrrerernrscssenrercens _ (423)° (1563) (198.6) ~ (41.0) (155.6) (196.6)
SUBLOLAL ..o eeeeeseeseeseesseseeessssesesseee e T 20)  (834)  (85.4) 55  (86.9) (81.4)
Less: valuation allowance ................ et _ (5.9 ' (5.9 — (5.9) (5.9)
Total covvoereeeerrerrn oottt oo S (20) $(893) $(91.3) $ 55 $(928) $(87.3)

Income tax payments were $4.1 million for the 52 weeks ended February 1, 2003, $1.0 million for the 52
weeks ended February 2, 2002, $0.1 million for the 20 weeks ended February 3, 2001 and $0.1 million for the
33 weeks ended September 16, 2000. Income tax refunds were $2.6 million for the 52 weeks ended February
1, 2003, $15,000 for the 52 weeks ended February 2, 2002, $0.1 million for the 20 weeks ended February 3,
2001 arid $0.4 million for the 33 weeks ended September 16, 2000. :

The Internal Revenue Service has closed its audits of the Company’s tax returns through fiscal 1998.

Note 20." Extraordinary Items

In fiscal 2001, the Successor Company’s extraordinary item of $3.3 million, net of an income tax benefit of
$2.3 million, represents costs incurred resulting from the early extinguishment of debt, including the write-off
of deferred financing costs, related to the pay down of the term loan from certain of the proceeds of the Senior
Subordinated Notes. In the 33 weeks ended September 16, 2000, the Predecessor Company’s extraordinary
item of $313.7 million, net of an income tax provision of $46.6 million, represents income from the
cancellation of debt related to the exchange of bond indebtedness and accrued interest for common stock and
warrants in accordance with the Plan of Reorganization; such income is reduced by the write-off of deferred
financing costs related to the former bank credit facility and bond indebtedness subject to exchange. The
income tax provision related to the extraordinary item is based on the deferred tax impact of the tax attribute -
reductions, net of the valuation allowance reversal related to certain deferred tax assets.

In Aprll 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, “Recession of FASB Statements 4, 44 and 64, Amendment
of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections.” The provisions of SFAS No. 145 related to
classification of debt extinguishments are effective for fiscal years beginning after May 15, 2002. We intend

to implement SFAS No. 145 in fiscal 2003 by applying APB Opinion No. 30 to all gains and losses related to
extinguishment of debt.
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Note 21. Capital Steck

Preferred Stock. As of February 1, 2003 and February 2, 2002, there were 5,000,000 shares of preferred
stock authorized of which none are issued or outstanding. ’

Common Stock. As of February 1, 2003 and February 2, 2002, there were 100,000,000 shares authorized of

$0.01 par value common stock. The following table summarizes the change in the number of shares of
common stock:

Commeon Steck

Issued Treasury Stock  Net Qutstanding
Balance, February 3, 2001 ..ot ) 30,098,510 - — 30,098,510
PUTChASse OF frEASUTY SEOCK. . vrvvveemrererrerreeeereeeesseeeesseemeseere e — (46,053) (46,053)
Stock oOptions €XErciSEd....oiviveiierieeriereriviirirniiesreseesaesrnnsesnens 1,000 750 . 1,750
Balance, February 2, 2002 ..o ievieniinnn e 30,099,510 (45,303) 30,054,207
Stock options exercised.........oocciveviiiiinnnnen, rterer et s bt raes s — 16,985 16,985
Balance, February 1, 2003 ....ccooviiviiiieceee e 30,099,510 (28,318) 30,071,192

As part of the Plan of Reorganization, the Predecessor Company’s subordinated debt and accrued interest

of approximately $1 billion was canceled and the holders of such subordinated debt received 30,000,000
~ shares, representing 100% of the outstanding common stock of the reorganized Company and holders of
certain subordinated debt also received warrants to purchase up to 5,294,118 shares of common stock at
$22.31 per share. Such warrants have a term of ten years from the Plan Effective Date.

Shares of common stock issued pursuant to the Plan of Reorganization are subject to dilution from (1) the
~ exercise of the warrants, and (2) the exercise of any options to purchase common stock issued pursuant to the
Company's Employee Plan and Directors' Plan (see Note 22). The Company's common stock and warrants
trade on the Nasdaq Stock Market under the ticker symbols “PTMK” and “PTMKW?, respectively.

Restricted Stock. The Company includes restricted stock awards in its earnings per share — basic
‘computation when vested and earnings per share — diluted computation when granted, provided that continued
employment is the only condition for vesting. A restricted stock award of 98,510 shares with a fair value of
$1.2 million was granted to the former Chief Executive Officer on Cctober 3, 2000, which was fully vested on
January 2, 2002. -Under the terms of the restricted shares issued, continued employment was the only
condition for vesting. Upon vesting, 46,053 shares were surrendered to the Company to satisfy the tax
withholding obligation and such shares were recorded as treasury stock at a cost of $1.2 million. The.
Company charged $0.8 million and $0.4 million to compensation expense in fiscal 2001 and the 20 weeks

ended February 3, 2001, respectively, for this award. No restricted stock awards were made in fiscal 2002 or
fiscal 2001.

Note 22. Stock Opticn Plans

The 2000 Employee Equity Plan (the “Employee Plan”) and the 2000 Non-Employee Directors’ Equity
Plan (the “Directors’ Plan”), which were implemented as of the Plan Effective Date, make available the
granting of options aggregating 5,294,118 shares of common stock, of which 5,164,118 shares are available
under the Employee Plan and 130,000 shares are available under the Directors’ Plan. All of the Company’s
-officers and certain employees are eligible to receive options under the Employee Plan. Options for additional
shares may be granted by the Board of Directors’ Compensation Committee. The Directors’ Plan is available
to the Company’s directors, who are not employees of the Company. As of February 1, 2003, the number of
options outstanding for the Company’s Employee Plan and Directors’ Plan were 5,061,530 options with a
weighted average exercise price of $12.07 and a weighted average contractual life of 8.7 years of which

1,069,107 options were exercisable. There were 213,853 shares of common stock available for future grant
under the Company’s Employee Plan and Directors’ Plan.
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. As of February 1, 2003, options to purchase 5 061 530 shares vest at various dates extending through fiscal

2006. The change in the number of options was as follows:

52 Weeks 52 Weeks 20 Weeks
Ended Ended Ended
February 1, February 2, February 3,
, 4 2003 2002 2001
Outstanding, beginning of fiscal year ......... s e 3,741,345 2,094,200 —
Granted during the fiscal Year.......coveevvivveiinicreeec e, 2,373,020 1,663,345 2,094,200
Exercised during the fiscal year............ccooovveeevecnnnne et (16,985) (1,750) —_
Canceled, terminated, and expired during the fiscal year-............. (1,035,850) (14,450) —_
Outstanding, end of fiscal YEAT oot eeeestereetseeester st seeeenas 5,061,530 3,741,345 2,094,200
Weighted average option exercise price information was as follows:
52 Weeks 52 Weeks 20 Weeks
Ended Ended Ended
February 1, February 2, February 3,
, : : 2003 2002 2001
Outstanding, beginning of fiscal year .........ccccovcvveicvivnnicncienn. $ 16.32 $ 1394 $ —
Granted during the fiscal Year....ccccoievvvicrvviiiiiiiere s 6.97 19.30 13.94
Exercised during the fiscal year...........iv..ooveveoreveereenrenn. R 13.94 13.94 —
Canceled, terminated, and expired dunng the fiscal year .............. 15.73 14.64 -_
Outstanding, end of fiscal year..........cccccoviiniiincistinicciincnan, 12.07 - 1632 13.94
Exercisable, end of fiscal 3 YEAT wovviivionnimsstmmsssennsstesmetissizonns errreeenies 15.63 13.94 —_

Slgmﬁcant option groups outstanding as of February 1, 2003 and related welghted average price and
remaining contractual life information were as follows: .

Option
Grant Date

10/25/00
03/29/01
06/14/01

10/04/01

06/13/02
09/12/02
10/22/02
10/28/02
Total

Remaining :

Number of Opticns Contractual Average Number of Options
Quistanding Life in Years Exercise Price Exercisabﬂe
1,554,715 7.7 $13.94 779,858

500,000 8.2 S 1725 125,000
60,000 - 34 22.89 20,000
576,995 8.7 2235 144249
25,000 4.5 18.50 —
714,820 , 9.6 11.76 —_—
1,000,000 , 9.8 4.75 —
630,000 98 465 —
5,061,530 87 - 812,07 1,069,107

Options which are designated as incentive stock options under the Employee Plan may be granted with an
exercise price not less than the fair market value of the underlying shares at the date of grant, as defined in the
plan document, and are subject to certain quantity and other limitations specified in Section 422 of the Internal .
Revenue Code. Options which are not intended to qualify as incentive stock options may be granted at any
price, but not less than the par value of the underlying shares and without restriction as to amount. The options
and the underlying shares are subject to adjustment in accordance with the terms of each plan in the event of

stock dividends, recapitalization and similar transactions.
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‘Plan and the Directors’ Plan expire ten years and five years after the date of grant, respectively, unless
terminated earlier by the Company’s Board of Directors. The right to exercise the options granted vests in

annual increments over four years under the Em]ployee Plan and over three years under the Directors’ Plan
from the date of the grant.

The Company has elected APB Opinion No. 25 and selected interpretations in accounting for each of its
stock option plans. Accordingly, as all options have been granted at exercise prices equal to the fair market
value on the date of grant, as defined in each stock option plan document, no compensation expense has been
- recognized by the Company in connection with its stock-based compensation plan.

SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” as amended by SFAS No. 148, requires the
disclosure of pro forma net earnings and net earnings per share as if the Company had adopted the fair value
method. Under SFAS No. 123, the fair value of stock-based awards toc employees is calculated through the use
of option pricing models, even though such models were developed to estimate the fair value of freely
tradable, fully transferable options without vesting restrictions, which significantly differ from the Company’s
stock option awards. These models also require subjective assumptions, including future stock price volatility
and expected time to exercise, which greatly affect the calculated values. The weighted average fair value of
the stock options granted during fiscal 2002, fiscal 2001 and the 20 weeks ended February 3, 2001 were $3.28,
$5.83 and $4.56, respectively. The Company’s fair value calculations were made using the Black-Scholes-
option pricing model on the date of the grant with the following weighted average assumptions for fiscal 2002,
fiscal 2001 and the 20 weeks ended February 3, 2001, respectively: risk free interest rates of 2.8%, 4.2% and

5.7%, expected lives of four years for each period; expected volatility of 58.5%, 30.5% and 30.0%; and an
expected d1v1dend yield of zero for each period.

The Company s fair value calculations are based on a smgle-optxon valuation approach and forfeltures are
recognized as they occur. Had compensation cost for the Company’s stock option plans beéen determined
based on the fair value at the grant date for awards, consistent with the provisions of SFAS No. 123, the

Company’s net earnings (loss) and net earnings (loss) per share would have been reduced to the pro forma
amounts disclosed in Note 2.

Note 23. Reo;ganiﬁati@n Income (Expenses).

The Successor Company’s reorganization income of $7.4 million for the 20 weeks ended February 3, 2001
represented a gain related to the difference between the settled lessor claims for rejected leases and the liability
previously recorded for such claims. The Predecessor Company’s reorganization expenses of $0.9 million for
the 33 weeks ended September 16, 2000 were comprised of $19.1 million of employee retention bonuses and
professional fees related to legal, accounting and consulting services directly attributable to the Plan of
Reorganization, net of a gain of $18.2 million related to the difference between the estimated lessor claims for
rejected leases and the habllmes prev1ously recorded for such leases.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)

Note 24. Consolidating Financial Information

The following represents the consolidating financial statements of Pathmark and its 100% owned guarantor
and nonguarantor subsidiaries. The guarantor subsidiaries are comprised of six 100% owned entities, including
Pathmark’s distribution subsidiary, and guarantee on a full and ‘unconditional and joint and several basis, the
Senior Subordinated Notes. The nonguarantor subsidiaries are comprised of four 100% owned single-purpose

entities. Each of these entities owns the real estate on which a supermarket leased to Pathmark is located. -
v Guarantor GuI:::ntor Intercompany  Consolidated
) P‘athmark Subsidiaries ©  Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
(in miltions)
Consolidating Statements of Operations:
Successor Company .
For the 52 Weeks Ended February 1, 2003 o ;
SalES oo sirsesesnsscanisesensassearnann! e $39377 82,4007 8 —  $(2,400.7) §$ 39377
Cost of goodé SOLA..eeeer e e (2,823.1) (2,394.3) — 2,400.7 (2,816.7)
GIOSS PIOLIl...res sttt et e 1,114.6 6.4 — _ 1,121.0
Selling, general and administrative eXpenses.................. . (953.0) 52 3.4 — (944:4)
Depreciation and amortization........coevviiveereterneeennes _— (76.0) (6.9) 1.7 _ (84.6)
Operating earmings (JOSS)......ccoeevererriererieeseenireenenssrenisenens 85.6 . 4.7 1.7 — 92.0
Interest-expense, Net........cvceeerereeererennns eereneenenens e . (62.5). (0.9) 1.7 — (65.1)
Equity in loss of subsidiaries................ S SRR 38 — — (3.8) —
Eamings (loss) before income taxes.and cumulative
effect of an accounting change......ccoccvevvecerervnesenenns 26.9 3.8 — (3.8) 269
Income tax provision ........cc.iceececrererunuverennna S (13.0) — — — (13.0)
Eamings (loss) before cumulative effect of o ' ,
an accounting Change ........covecireeieereesreesennes rerireeneens 139 "+ 38 — (3.8) 13.9
Cumulative effect of an accounting change, net of tax...... (0.6) — — — - (0.6)
Net €armnings (OSS) .c..coveriereerereererrensimmeresiomsersineersarsineneens $ 133 & - 38 § — 3 38 § 13.3
Consolidaﬁhg Statements of Operations:
Successor Company .
For the 52 Weeks Ended February 2, 2002 .
SALES ..ot e e $ 39633 § 23983 8§ —  $(23983) § 3,963.3
Cost of g00ds $0Id.....ccveereererreurennee eterr et ente e (2,858.5) (2,395 .4) — 2,398.3 - (2,855.6)
GIOSS PIOML.crrvvrnleerenrsensnnrc SR 1,104.8 29 — — 1,107.7
Selling, general and administrative expenses.................... . (931.9) 8.1 3.4 — (920.4)
* Depreciation and amortization............ S S (68.0) NeA)) (1.6) — (76.7)
Amortization of goOGWIHL ........cccvvievieieeneeerreene (265.5) — — — (265.5)
Operating earnings (0SS} ....cocoeeevreermiiririreiniierereneiescenns (160.6) 3.9 1.8 —_ (154.9)
Interest EXPENSE, NEL...vvvervrrererserreisiisesesesesreesssinseserssessons (62.1) (1.4) (1.8 — (65.3)
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries..........cc.ooeoeevuiiiverniennens 24 — — 2.4) —_
Eamnings (loss) before income taxes and -
eXIrA0rdinary HMEM . .c.ccereeverreererrcrninreriereeseecssssreseeeeseeneens (220.3) 25 — 2.4) (220.2)
................ (18.4) (0.1) — — (18.5)
............. (238.7) 24 — (2.4) (238.7)
............................................. (3.3) — — —_ 3.3)
.................... $ (24200 S 24 % — 3 (24) 3 (242.0)
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Note 24. Consoclidating Financial Information — (Continued)

Guarantor Gul:::ﬂ;ﬁoﬂ' Intercompany  Consolidated
Pathmark Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
) (in millions)
Consolidating Statements of Operations (Continued):
. Successor Company

For the 20 Weeks Ended February 3, 2001 ; ‘
SRIES et e $ 146837 § 9022 § — & (902.2) § 1,493.7
Cost of goods e - RO (1,074.4) . (900.4) — 902.2 (1,072.6)
GroSs PrOfit .ovevieicverrerenieie e sesese e sarsssseenas 4193 1.8 —_— — 421.1
Selling, general and administrative €XPEenses......... (342.7) 22 1.2 — (339.3)
Depreciation and amortization ..............ececeverevennene. (23.0) ‘ (2..3) (0.5) — (25.8)
Reorganization iNCOME........ccouvneereivicveenreisieerenenes 7.4 - — — 7.4
Amortization of goodwill ..........cceceesvevniieniiiorenns (98.5) — — — (98.5)
Operating eamings (10SS).....ccccovvurreerireresuricererecverenns (37.5) 1.7 0.7 — (35.1)
Interest eXpense, Nel........cocvveeeeeermveicecericsireveeens (25.3) (1.8) (0.6) — 27.7)
Earnings (loss) before income taxes..........c.ovvunee... (62.8) 0.1) 0.1 —_— (62.8)
Income tax Provision .........cemmeeriveireerorerensinens (14.7) — _ _ (14.7)
Net earnings (10SS) ..ovevereerevererinirireereeeeeseeeeeeereeenns $ (775 3 ©01n 01 $ — & @5
Predecessor Company
For the 33 Weeks Ended September 16, 2000
SalES ..ot e $ 23482 §$ 13981 § —  $(1,398.1) § 2,348.2
Cost of goods e < . (1,691.3) (1,395.3) — ,398.1 (1,688.5)
Gross Profit c.cceveevviineieisssiserecees e ' 656.9 28 — — 659.7
Selling, general and adrrumstratwe €XPENSES.......... (555.9) 4.0 22 — (549.7)
Deprec1at10n and amortization ............oeceeeveveienene. ‘ (41.9) (5.2) 0.9 — (48.0)
Reorganization eXpense........oueeveeeeveneeieerrerevennns (0.9) — — _ (0.9)
Operating earnings .......covcvcivvevereveincensisceenereresononas '58.2 1.6 1.3 — 61.1
Interest Xpense, Net.......ccoevvvcviiererecneieinveerereinnnens . (92.9) (5.1) (1. — (99.1)
Equity in loss of subsidiaries........c.courvcmnernirnrnenn. (3.3) — —_ 33 —
Earnings (loss) before income taxes and ' o

extraordinary em .........oovevvevvrnreriene e (38.0) (3.5) 0.2, 33 (38.0)
Income tax provision ..........ceceveverveeee. TN 00 — — — 0.1)
Eamnings (loss) before extraordinary item............... (38.1)- (3.5) 0.2 33 (38.1)
Extraordinary item, net of taX......ccoooovevvicinveeninnns 3137 — — — 313.7
Net earnings (10S8) coorrrrrrrerrnee e $ 27568 (35) S 02 8 33 $ 2756
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Note 24. Consolidating Financial Information — (Continued)

‘Guarantor Gu:::r;tor Entercompany  Consolidated
Pathmark Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
: ' (in millions)
Consolidating Balance Sheets:
Successor Company
As of February 1, 2003 .
Merchandise iINVENtOTIES........covevevererereirierieeenienas $ 1604 § 237 § — 3 — § 1841
‘Other current assets .......... e R 137.7 5.0 0.4 — 143.1
Total current assets .......ccovrereveiereerenrereeiieeeeinas 02981 28.7 0.4 — 327.2
Property and equipment, net........ccooeveieciiinnnennnne 517.2 56.7 - 30.6 — 604.5
GoodWill, et ..o 434.0 —_— — — 4340
Investment in SubSIAIArIES .......cccererreivmreceririereninnene 53.0 — — (53.0) —
Other noncurrent assets ................... eerer et 150.8 . 5.4 0.7 — 156.9
Total assets.......cccevivrrrercenanie eeeeeereereresesseenen e 8 1,453.1 90.8 31.7 3§ (53.0) §1,522.6
Accounts payable.........c.ceererreeeeirieniiee e $ 851 7.1 — — § 922
Other current Habilities......cc..ovovvverrsvserrsrroeee 170.5 38 0.8 — 175.1
Total current liabilities.....c..coovevveiviinccicciniens 255.6 10.9 0.8 —_ 2673
Long-term debt ........ccccconeer. ST 418.0 — 214 — 439.4
Long-term lease obligations.............cc.ccevveveerernnn. 177.1 5.8 — — 182.9
Other noncurrent liabilities.........cooeeveeerevienennnnne, 245.9 30.3 — — 276.2
Stockholders’ eqUity .......c.covuevvvericrririsvneenninnee 356.5- 43.8 9.5 (53.0) 356.8
Total liabilities and-stockholders’ equity ............. $14531 § 9.8 S$§ 317 § (53.0) §1,522.6
Successor Company
As of February 2, 2002
Merchandise INVentories........cocvvvvevrvevrreserenennnas $ 1599 § 258 §  — 3§ — § 1857
Other current assets .......cvevrnrievererrieerisenerens 153.1 36 0.5 — 157.2
Total current @ssets.........ooeerereveresreecnnrenevisernereeas 313.0 294 05 — 342.9
Property and equipment, net.........cocoveeeevrerinnne 478.7 62.4 313 S 572.4
GOOAWILL, TIEE worcvrveereveesesssers e 434.0 — — — 4340
Investment in SUbSIIATIES «...vooovevecererersrsscrorerreens 49.2. — — 49.2) —_
Other noncurrent assets ..........coeeervreerrerrerereneneeens 149.0 — 0.8 (3.6) 146.2
TOtal @SSELS....curireiriereereirieeeeteie s - $14239 $ 918 § 326 § (52.8) $1,4955
Accounts payable..........oivrreeersoresen — $ 97 $ 35 8 _— § — § 942
- Other current liabilities........cocoveevnrivevcrvennirerens 172.5 5.5 0.8. — 178.8
Total current liabilities.....c.cccccvvvirirvrvereninrierenenne 263.2 9.0 0.8 — 273.0
Long-term debt ................. Nt 418.8 — 21.8 — 440.6
Long-term lease obligations........ccece v vevveevecivennen 164.3 8.5 —_— — 172.8
Other noncurrent iabilities........c.o....ccooveeeovvreennees 2332 35.1 — (3.6) 264.7
Stockholders’ equity.......ccooeeeeeenene. Ceveereern i 344 4 392 10.0 (49.2) 344 4
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ............. $ 14239 8§ 918 § 326 $§ (528) §$1,4955
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Note 24. Consolidating Financial Information — {Continued)

Non-
Guarantor Guarantor Intercompany  Consolidated
Pathmark Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations - _Total

(in millicns)
Consolidating Cash Flew Statements:

. Sucecessor Company
“For the 52 Weeks Ended February 1, 2003
. Operatmg Activities _ . :
Cash provided by operating actwmes ......................... $ 87 $ 34 8 19 3 — § 92.0
Investing Acnvmes ) » ‘

Property and equipment expendltu.res cverenrenereinnenes (90.0) (1.6) (1.0) — (92.6)

Lease financings..........c.ovueeereeenirneenneeneresins R (12.7) — — — (12.7)
Cash used for investing activities ........ccoeeerrirerrirnenen. (102.7) (1.6) (1.0) . — (105.3)
Financing Activities ' ‘ v , ‘

Decrease in capital lease obligations......... s (11.4) (2.6) —_ — (14.0)

Borrowings under lease financings ..........ccoevvererenees ‘ C 127 — — — 127

Boerrowing under the working capital facility ........... 100 = — — 10.0

Repayment of other debt.......ccccoveerivercrereccvennrinneinn, 9.1 — — — 3.1

Increase in other debt........ocoevocmrvmvecvrreceerrennan, 3.1 — (0.1) — 3.0

Deferred financing Costs......c.uveerrerriererereeremmeinnannnes (2.2) — —_— — (2.2)

Repayment of the term loan.......... et ebe st ‘ 0.7 ' — — : 0.7

Proceeds from exercise of stock options ................. 0.3 — — — , 03

Intercompany equity Tansactions............ceieeevereeneens (0.3) 0.8 (0.5) — —

_ Other financing activities.........cccoevuerereeescrecrernennnn, 0.3 —_— (0.3) —_ —
Cash provided by (used for) financing activities ........ 2.7 (1.8) 0.9) — —
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents.........cc........... (13.3) — _ - — (13.3)
Cash ard cash equivalents at beginning of period-...... - 242 0.1 0.3 — 24.6
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period................. 3 109 § 01 3 03 § — 11.3
Successor Company .

For the 52 Weeks Ended February 2, 2@@2.

Operating Activities )

Cash provided by operating activities ........coovveeerinns $§ 726 % 64 $ 36§ — 3 82.6
Investing Activities ' :

Property and equipment expenditures ..........c.cove.cen. - (112.8) (L7 (2.0 —_ (116.5)
Cash used for investing activities ..........cccceeeererrirnnnans (112.8) (1.7) 2.0 — (116.5)
Financing Activities T

Repayments of the term 10an .........coocvinicniininene. (203.4) o — — (203.4)

Borrowings under the senior subordinated notes...... 200.0 - — — g 200.0

Decrease in capital lease obligations............cc........... - (11.9) (2.9 — —_— (14.8)

Deferred financing Costs .......iooorvveeeeermecent e (6.2) — — — (6.2)

Purchase of treasury Stock ....iceovvenvrenerevmvccrvnrincnnas - (1.2) — - — (1.2)

Repayment of other debt........ccccovirinnvnecneniinninnn. , 0% . — (0.3) _ — (1.2)

Intercompany equity transactions.........cc.cecrerecennenes 47.5 (47.5) — — —

Other financing ACHVILES ..........ovveiererere e ieveerrereeenes ' 2.0 — (1.3) — 07
Cash provided by (Lised for) financing activities ........ 259 (50.4) (1.6) ) — (26.1)

'Decrease in cash and cash equivalents ..o (14.3) @5.7) — T (60.0)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period...... 385 45.8 03 — 84.6
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period................. $ 242 % 0.1 $ 03 § — 3 24.6
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Note 24. Consolidating Financial Information — (Continued)

Consolidating Cash Flow Statements (Contmued)
Successor Company
For the 20 Weeks Ended February 3, 2001 -
Operating Activities
_ Cash provided by (used for) operatmg activities
Investmg Activities
Property and equipment expendxtu:es ............................
Proceeds from disposition of property and equlpment .
Cash used for investing activities
Financing Activities _
Decrease in capital lease obligations
Repayments of the term l0an ................cccccemnrecrevviorernnens
Increase (decrease) in other debt........ccocvvevieclininnnnnn,
Intercompany equity transactions............eevvereersivevennne
Cash provided by (used for) financing activities
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents.............
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

" Predecessor Company
For the 33 Weeks Ended September 16, 2000
Operating Activities

Cash provided by operating activities ........ccvvieerrserrennes : |

Investing Activities
Property and equipment expendifiures ...........iveerereicnnns
Proceeds from disposition of property and equipment ..

Cash used for investing activities
Financing Activities )
Borrowings under the term loan

‘Repayments of the term loan .......ccccovvemncenirrenenne :

Repayments under the working capital facility..............
Borrowings under the DIP facility '
Repayments of the DIP facility
Deferred financing CoStS ......ccoevvvvnienreivnrnienevnerersereeens
Decrease in capital lease obligations........c.ccoureerncs e
" Repayment of other debt......cccoovvveccrivvrnnecnicrennne, e
Other financing actiVities........ocvuerencrrerecraresennrerereenns
Cash provided by (used for) financing activities
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents.............
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period ...........
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Guarantorl Gul:::mor Intercompany  Consclidated

Pathmark Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

(in millions)

464 $ (72) $ 07 S — % 399
(22.4) — (0.1) — (22.5)
2.6 — —_ — 26
(19.8) — (0.1) — (19.9)
(19) (4.1) - — (6.0)
(3.6) — — — (3.6)
(11.9) 12.1 (0.5) - (0.3)
(45.0) 450 — _ —
(62.4) 53.0 (0.5) _ (9.9)
(35.8) 45.8 0.1 — 10.1
743 _ —_— 0.2 — 74.5
‘385 § 458 % 03 § — 3 84.6
115 % 133 % 13§ — 8 26.1
(24.9) — 0.4) — (25.3)
9.8 —_— —_ — ‘9.8
(15.1) — (0.4 — (15.5)
425.0 —_ — — 425.0
(241.4) — — — (241.4)
(109.8) - — — — (109.8)
28.5 — — — 28.5
(28.5) — - - (28.5)
(12.8) — — -— (12.8)
(11.0) (0.6) — — (11.6)
. 13.0 (12.7) (1.2) — (0.9)
(0.8) — — — (0.8)
62.2 (13.3) (12) — 47.7
58.6 — (0.3) — 58.3.
15.7 — 0.5 -— 16.2
$ 743 . § —  $ 02 § — $ 74.5
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Note 25. Commitments and Contingencies

Outsourcing Agreements. In April 2001, the Company entered into a five-year outsourcing agreement with
International Business Machines Corporation (“IBM”) to continue to provide a wide range of information
systems services, which commenced in 1991. Under the agreement, IBM provides data center operations,
mainframe. processing, business applications and systems development to enhance the Company’s customer
‘service and efficiency. The charges under this agreement are based upon the services requested at predetermined

rates. The Company may terminate the agreement upon 90 days notice with a payment of a specified
~ termination charge.

The Company has a 15-year supply agreement with C&S Wholesalers Inc. (“C&S”) expiring in fiscal 2013,
pursuant to which C&S supplies substantially all of the Company’s grocery, frozen and perishable merchandise
requirements. Under this arrangement with C&S, the Company negotiate prices, discounts and promotions with
vendors. During fiscal 2002, the products supplied from C&S accounted for approximately 60% of all the

Company’s supermarket inventory purchases. This agreement may be terminated for cause or certain events of
bankruptcy by either party.

The Company also has an agreement‘ expiring in fiscal 2014, with a local trucking company to provide

trucking services for the Company. The Company may terminate the agreement with a payment of a specified
termination charge.

Contingencies. The Company is a party to a number of legal proceedings in the ordinary course of
business. Management believes that the ultimate resolution of these proceedings will not, in the aggregate,
have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial statements taken as a whole.

The Company has taken certain tax positions, which may be challenged, and has reserved for such tax
positions. While the ultimate resolution of these positions cannot be determined with any degree of certainty,
management believes that the aggregate liability, if any, when compared to the amounts reserved by the
Company, will not have a material effect on the Company’s financial statements taken as a whole.

Guarantees. In the normal course of business, the Company has assigned to third parties various leases
related to former businesses that the Company sold as well as former operating Pathmark supermarkets (the
“Assigned Leases”). If any of the assignees were to become unable to continue making payments under the
Assigned Leases, the Company could be required to assume the lease obligation. As of February 1, 2003, 64
Assigned Leases remain in place. Assuming that each respective assignee became unable to continue to make
payments under an Assigned Lease, an event the Company believes to be remote, management estimates its
maximum potential obligation with respect to the Assigned Leases to be approximately $84 million.
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Note 26. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

52 Weeks
13 Weeks Ended Ended
May 4, August 3, November 2,  February 1, February 1,
2002 2002 2002 2003 2003
Fiscal 2002 (a) . ’ - ’ " (in millions, except per share amounts)
SaLES. oot $ 976.8 § 9873 $ 9715 $1,002.1 § 39377
Costof g00ds S01d ....ceeeieveeeiiiiiciccc i (697.8) (708.0) {698.1) (712.8) (2,816.7)
GIOSS PIOTIt ..t csieini et aes T 279.0 279.3 2734 289.3 1,121.0
Selling, general and adrmmstranve EXPENses ....... e, s - (237.7) {235.2) (235.6) (235'.9) (944.4)
Depreciation and amortization................ ST S (20.7) (2149 (21.1) (21.9) (84.6)
Operating earnings.......c.ccecveeeveeereeseanrereeenns Heereerenae s 206 . 227 16.7 32.0 92.0
INtETESt EXPEISE, TEL ....vvvvveveesvereeessieeeseseeseseeesense s (16.3) (16.8)  (17.0) (15.0) (65.1)
Eamings (loss) before income taxes and , :
cumulative effect of an accounting change ..................... .43 59 0.3) 17.0 - 269
- INCOME taX PIOVISION ...oovvveveverereeecsesaeseesresse e s (1.6) . {24 0.1 (8.1 (13.0)
Eamings (loss) before cumulative effect of .

an accounting change.........cviveenvireviinienenincee e, 27 3.5 (0.2) 7.9 ' 13.9
Cumulative effect of an accounting change, ‘

NEt 0 taX (@) eriiirerrierii it (0.6) — e — (0.6)
Net eamings (1088) .eue.ereerevereeeeereresssesssesreren et $ 21 $ 35 $ (02 $ 79 % 133
Net earnings (loss) per share — basic and diluted................. § 007 § 0.11 $§ (001 § 0.26 3 0.44
Net earnings — as previously reported (@) .....cc..ccovvreeenniiins 3 2.8 3 34 5 01
Net earnings (loss) per share — as previously reported (a)... $ 0.09 $ 0.11 R
LIFO charge (Credit) .....cccvovvinniervrerreresisrnneescoressnnssenenen. I 05 $ 05 3 05 $ @21 % (0.6)

13 Weeks Ended szErée:dks
- May5, " August 4, November 3, February 2, February 2,
2001 2001 2001 2002 2002

Fiscal 2001 . - (in millions, except per share amounts)
SALES. ..o e e $ 977.2. § 9977 $ 9859 $1,0025 $ 39633
Cost 0f 200ds SOIA ....cvvveveivrrnerriirrinner e, (704.5) (720.6) (711.3) (719.2) (2,855.6)
GIOSS PIOSIL ..ooeorveeeessieeeeeses e eseeeeeresenseese s e 272.7 277.1 274.6 283.3 1,107.7
Selling, general and administrative eXpenses ...........coc....... (227.9) (232.3) (231.0) (229.2) (920.4)
Depreciation and amortization..............ccoevevevereveesreeevenenen, (18.8) (19.9) (18.4) (19.6) (76.7)
Amortization of goodwill .....cccovevevnnnieinnieniin e, (66.4) (66.4) (66.3) (66.4) (265.5)
Operating LOSS ....c.ccuvuireeriinierienrereereieresaereereraesenessreserensans (40.4) (41.5) ' 41.1) (31.9) (154.9)
Interest eXpense, NEt ....c.ccvverrircenemiseeiesenrrerereeresseens e (17.6) (16.2) (16.0) (15.5) (65.3)
Loss before income taxes and extraordinary item ............... (58.0) (57.7) (57.1) (47.4) (220.2)
Income tax ProviSion .........ivececeeviiieneiesnresienesernre e 34 - (33 3.7 RA)) (18.5)
Loss before extraordinary item.........cccoovcceeennnnes e, (61.4) (61.2) (60.8) (55.3) (238.7)
Extraordinary item, net 0f tax (b) ieve....vvvemeerreeesesreresenerenns — — - (3.3) (3.3)
Net oSS ..o.ovveciveirieceiieeeeniens ettt ettt et naea e $ (614 3 (612) $ (60.8) 3 (586) § (2420
Net loss per share — basic and diluted.........c.coo.corvverivnenanene. $ (205 8§ (204 $ (203 $ (195 § (8.07)
LIFO Charge. ..ovuvitiiiceeerecteecs et iss et $§ 05 3 0.5 § 05 $ 0.5 5 2.0

(a) See Note 2, Significant Accounting Policies, Cumulative Effect of An Accounting Change. The quarterly financial data for the 13

weeks ended May 4, 2002, August 3, 2002 and November 2, 2002 have been restated to reflect the adoption of EITF No. 02-16 as of
the beginning of fiscal 2002. .

(b) See Note 20, Extraordinary Items.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Pathmark Stores, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Pathmark Stores, Inc. and subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of February 1, 2003 and February 2, 2002 (Successor Company) and the related consclidated
statements of operations, stockholders’ equity {deficiency) and cash flows for the 52 weeks ended February 1,
2003, 52 weeks ended February 2, 2002, the 20 weeks ended February 3, 2001 (Successor Company) and the -
33 weeks ended September 16, 2000 (Predecessor Company). These financial statements are the respensibility

of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits. :

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America.. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free .of material misstatement.. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit alsc includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating

the overall ﬁnanmal statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion. ‘

In our opinion, the Successor Company consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects the consolidated financial position of the Company as of February 1, 2003 and February 2, 2002, and
the results of its consolidated operations and its consolidated cash flows for the 52 weeks ended February 1,
2003, 52 weeks ended February 2, 2002 and the 20 weeks ended February 3, 2001, in conformity with
‘accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Further, in our opinion, the
Predecessor Company consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the results of its
consolidated operations and its consolidated cash flows for the 33 weeks ended September 16, 2000, in
conformity with accountmg principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consohdated financial statements, the Company completed its plan of
reorganization and formally exited Chapter 11 on September 19, 2000. Accordingly, the accompanying
financial statements have been prepared in conformity with AICPA Statement of Position 90-7, “Financial
Reporting for Entities in Reorganization Under the Bankruptcy Code,” for the Successor Company as a new

entity with assets, liabilities, and a capital structure having carrying values not comparable with prior periods
as described in Note 1.

" As discussed in Note 2 to the coﬁsolidated financial statements, in fiscal 2002, the Company changed its
method of accounting for goodwill and other intangible assets to conform to Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, effective as o.f February 3, 2002; the Company
changed its method of accounting for cash consideration received from vendors to comply with Emerging

Issues Task Force Issue No. 02-16, “Accountmg by a Customer (Including a Reseller) for Certain Consideration
Received from a Vendor.”

Deloitte & Touche LLP
New York, New York
April 1, 2003
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Part Iif

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

(a) Directors of the Registrant

Information concerning this item will be included in the registrant’s 2003 Proxy Statement which

- will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) within 120 days after February »
1, 2003, and is incorporated herein by reference.

b)) - Executive Officers of the Registrant

Information concemmg this item is included i in this report under Item 44, “Executive Officers of
the Registrant.”

Item 11. Executive Compensation

~ Information concerning this item will be included in the registrant’s 2003 Proxy Statement which will be
filed with the SEC within 120 days after February 1, 2003, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Owaership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

Information concerning this item will be included in the registrant’s 2003 Proxy Statement which will be
filed with the SEC within 120 days after February: 1, 2003, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related T;ansacﬁons

Information concerning this item will be included in the registrant’s 2003 Proxy Statement which will be
filed with the SEC within 120 days after February 1, 2003, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Controls and Procedures

Within 90 days before the filing of this Form 10-K, under the supervision and with the participation of the
Company’s management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we carried out an
evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures pursuant to Rule 13(a)-14(c) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Based upon that evaluation,
the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controis and

procedures are effective in timely alerting them to material information required to be included in the
Company’s periodic SECfilings.

There have been no significant changes in the Company’s internal controls or in other factors that could
significantly affect these controls subsequent to the date of their evaluation.

| Part IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Report on Form 8-K

(a) Exhibits
The exhibits have been filed with the SEC.

(b)  Financial Statement Schedules
None required.

(c) Report on Form 8-K

On January 31, 2003, we filed a report on Form 8-K thh the SEC under Item S regarding an
amendment to our credlt agreement.
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or ‘15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
_ has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: April 30, 2003

Pathmark Stores, Inc.

. By /s/ Eileen R. Scott
(Eileen R. Scott)
Chief Executive Officer
By /s/ Frank G. Vitrano
(Frank G. Vitranc)

President and Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature

/s/ Eileen R. Scott

(Eugene M. Freedman)

/s/ Robert G. Miller

(Robert G. Miller)

" /s/ Steven L. Volla -

(Steven L. Volla)

Marc A. Strasster
Attommey-in-Fact

*By: . /s/ Marc A, Strassler

Title

Director and Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)

~ Director, President and Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer)

Senior Vice President and Controller

(Principal Accounting Officer)

Director*
Director*
Pirector*
Director*

Director, Chairman*
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Date

April 30, 2003
April 30, 2003
April 30, 2003
April 30, 2003
April 30, 2003
April 30, 2003
April 30, 2003

April 30, 2003




Designed by Curran & Connors, Inc. | www.curran-connors.com

Corporate Information

Company Headquarters

Pathmark Stores, Inc.

200 Milik Street

Carteret, New Jersey 07008
732-499-3000

Website: www.pathmark.com

Annual Meeting

The Annual Meeting of sharehold-
ers will be held at 3:00 p.m. on
June 13, 2003 at the Company’s
headquarters at 200 Milik Street,
Carteret, New Jersey 07008.

Stock Listing

Pathmark’s common stock

and warrants are traded on

The Nasdaq Stock Market® under
the trading symbols PTMK and
PTMKWV, respectively.

Transfer Agent, Registrar and
Warrant Agent

Mellon Investor Services LLC

85 Challenger Road

Ridgefield Park, New Jersey 07660
www.melloninvestor.com

Sharchoider Information

For assistance regarding lost stock
certificates or transfers

of ownership, contact
800-279-1263.

For shareholder information and
copies of our financial reports,
access Pathmark’s website:
www.pathmark.com and

click on “Investor Relations.”

A copy of the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K will be sent
without charge to any shareholder
upon request by contacting Investor
Relations and can be accessed
online at www.pathmark.com.

Independent Auditors

Deloitte & Touche LLP
New York, New York

Board of Directors

Steven L. Volla®®@
Non-executive Chairman of the Board

Eileen R. Scott
Chief Executive Officer

Frank G. Vitrano
President and Chief Financial Officer

William ). Begley
Former Deputy Chairman
Wasserstein Perella Co., Inc.

Daniel H. Fitzgerald®
Former Managing Director
Gleacher Natwest

Eugene M. Freedman®
Senior Advisor and Partner
Monitor Company Group

Robert G. Miller®"
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Rite Aid Corporation

Board Committees
(1) Compensation Committee
{2) Audit Committee

Corporate Officers

Eileen R. Scott
Chief Executive Officer

Frank G. Vitrano
President and Chief Financial Officer

Robert |. Joyce
Executive Vice President
Human Resources and Labor Relations

Art Whitney
Executive Vice President
Merchandising and Logistics

Joseph W. Adelhardt

Senior Vice President and Controller

Harvey M. Gutman
Senior Vice President
Retail Development

Marc A. Strassler
Senior Vice President, Secretary
and General Counsel

Pathmark Officers

Senior Yice Presidents

Robert Candelora
Non Foods and Pharmacy

John T. Derderian
Sales and Marketing

Mark C. Kramer

Northern Division Operations

Grant S. McLoughlin

Southern Division Operations

John . Ruane
Perishable Merchandising

Robert W. Schoening
Chief Information Officer

Vice Presidents

Craig S. Carlson
Produce and Floral Merchandising

Thomas Connors
Regional Operations—South

Hal Crane
Labor Relations

John R. Ferrara
Pharmacy

Laura H. Jurkowich
Grocery Merchandising

David N. Kelly

Store Engineering and Construction

Ernie Koenig
Regional Operations—~North

Robert G. Oberosler
Regional Operations—North

Sal Olivito
Dairy and Frozen Merchandising

Jeffery Richardson

Loss Prevention

Robert Solomon
Logistics

John Sportelli
Meat Merchandising

Frank R. Teresa
Regional Operations——North

Edward R. Whitby
Regional Operations—South
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